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About Rani Bibi:

Rani Bibi is a self-taught artist who along with her
husband runs a successful business of supplying pai
[feet] for charpais [beds]. While her husband crafts the
pai from wood, she dyes them and then carves intricate
patterns on them. This helps fetch a higher price for
the pai and more income for their small family.
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About Kashf Foundation

Kashf Foundation is registered as a Non-Banking Micro Finance Company regulated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Kashf was set up in 1996
as the first specialized microfinance institution of Pakistan. Over the years, Kashf
has successfully carved out a distinct and unique niche for itself in the microfinance
sector at home and abroad by offering a suite of holistic, innovative, and
transformative products and services to low-income households especially women.
Kashf offers credit appraisal backed individual loans to its clients along with other
non-financial services to have a transformative impact at the household level, thus
ensuring clients are able to build a strong credit history. Kashf believes in creating

an enabling environment for women micro-entrepreneurs and is committed to
creating products and services driven by client needs and demands which leverage
on lessons from successful models from across the world. Kashf’s main spheres of
intervention include (1) Financial Services, (2) Insurance and Safety Nets, (3) Capacity
Building Trainings, and (4) Social Advocacy Interventions.

Financial Services Insurance and Safety Net Capacity Building Social Advocacy
o Credit for Life Insurance Trainings Interventions
o Comprehensive Inpatient Health e Financial Education Trainings e Social Theatre
Insurance ® Business Development Trainings ® Television Dramas
o Hospital Cash Health Insurance  \locational Skills Trainings ® (Gender Sensitization Workshops
Compliant Loans e |ivestock Insurance
Covid Rehabilitation Loans




Vision
Financial services for all in

a poverty free and gender
equitable society.

Mission

Serving all with dignity by providing high quality and
sustainable microfinance services to low-income families
and micro-entrepreneurs to enhance financial capabilities,
alleviate household poverty and enable all, especially women,
to become active agents of social and economic change.

Core Values

Commitment to
transparency and

e Commitment to Commitment to
service with integrity innovation in products

sl and processes fiduciary responsibility

, , Commitment to ‘ ‘
e Commitment to merit, e , e  Commitment to social
- institutional and client ‘
diversity, dignity of all, and - and environmental
level sustainability

team-work responsibility
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Dr.Hafiz A.Pasha- Chairperson
Ms.Rabia Khan- Director
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Tel: +92 42 35715479

Web: www.mandviwallaandzafar.com

Tax Advisors

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jail Road, Lahore
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Registered Head Office
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Phone: +(92-42) 35248901-25
Website:www.kashf.org




Geographical Outreach

Kashf Foundation currently operates in 37 districts of Punjab, 14 districts in Sindh, 8 districts in KPK
and 1 district in Balochistan through a network of 325 branches.
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Chairman

" Ms.Rabia Khan
Director
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Ms.Fatima Asaa Khan
Director

Ms.Ameena Saiyid
Director
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Mr.Arif Masud Mirza
Director

Board of Directors

Profession: Retired Civil Servant and Economist

Dr.Hafiz A. Pasha is a retired civil servant and a leading economist with a PhD in Economics from
Stanford University, and a M.A in Economics from University of Cambridge University, U.K. He has held
many notable national and international appointments including Advisor to the Prime Minister, Federal
Minister for Finance and Economic Affairs, Founder Chairman of the Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund,
Vice Chancellor/President of University of Karachi, Director of the Institute of Business Administration,
Assistant Administrator at the United Nations Development Programme(UNDP), Regional Director of
Bureau for Asia and the Pacific for the UNDP, Member Board of Governors for the World Bank, and
Managing Director at the Institute of Public Policy (IPP).

Occupation: Gender Specialist

Ms.Rabia Khan is a lawyer by profession and also holds a Masters Degree in Policy and Management
from the Carnegie Mellon University, USA. Ms. Khan has worked in the field of Gender and Development
for many years with the Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA) and has also worked with
the International Union for the Conservation of Nature (lUCN) on Sustainable Development. Currently,
Ms. Khan works as a freelance consultant.

Occupation: Managing Director, Abacus Consulting, Corporate Governance and People
Solutions

Ms.Fatima Asad Khan is the CEO of AbacusELS (a subsidiary of Abacus Consulting) which offers
human resource outsourcing solutions, and is responsible for strategically managing the alliance
partnership with Mercer, a leading global HR consulting firm. Ms. Khan has over twenty years of
change management, organizational structuring and human capital development experience through
strategic formulation and project management roles. After an MBA from Lahore University of
Management Sciences (LUMS), she started her career with Coopers & Lybrand International and then
moved to PricewaterhouseCoopers before joining Abacus Consulting.

Occupation: Managing Director, Lightstone Publishers

Ms.Ameena Saiyid is the Founder and Director of the Adab Festival and Founder and Managing
Director of Lightstone Publishers (Pvt) Ltd in Pakistan. She served as the Managing Director of the
Oxford University Press for 30 years, becoming the first woman in Pakistan to do so. In 2005, she
became the first Pakistani woman to be awarded the Order of the British Empire for her services
to women’s rights, education, and intellectual property rights in Pakistan, and to Anglo-Pakistan
relations. She has held many notable positions including Secretary General of the Jinnah Society,
Board Member of Habib University Foundation, Board Member of the Institute of Art and Culture,
Lahore, President of the Overseas Investors’ Chamber of Commerce and Industry, and Member of the
federal education minister’s Search Committee for the selection of scholars on Pakistan. Ms. Saiyid
is also Trustee of the Vicky Noon Education Foundation, UK.

Occupation: Chartered Accountant, Regional Head of Policy for ACCA MENASA (Middle East
North Africa and South Asia)

Mr.Arif Masud Mirza is a Chartered Accountant by profession and the Regional Head of Policy for
ACCA MENASA (Middle East North Africa and South Asia) of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2014. Mr. Masud has headed senior positions at various organizations; he was
the CEO/Head of ACCA Pakistan of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Manager
Finance & company secretary at International Investment Bank Ltd.



m/

ib

Dr.Mehjabeen A.Hab
Director

Prof.Dr.Rukhsana David
Director

Dr. Ali Cheema
Director

£50 )
Ms.Maliha H.Hussein
Director

Ms.Sadia Khan
Director

Board of Directors

Occupation: Consultant, Climate Change Specialist

Dr. Mehjabeen Abidi-Habib is a social ecologist and scholar of institutional innovations that change
society based on social context, leadership, and adaptation in law and policy. Dr. Abidi-Habib has a
PhD in Resilience from the Government College University Lahore, with a fellowship with the University
of Oxford. The research emanating from this PhD was awarded the International 2007 Science and
Society Award by the Resilience Alliance. Dr. Abidi-Habib has served on the Board of Directors of the
Lahore Museum, Lahore Waste Management Company, Soan Valley Development Program, and the
Lahore Zoo Advisory Committee. She has also served on the National Steering Committee on REDD+,
and been an Advisor to the Pakistan Girl Guides Association.

Occupation: Principal of Kinnaird College for Women

Prof.Dr.Rukhsana David has been serving as Principal of the prestigious Kinnaird College for Women
Lahore since 2010. Dr. David’s notable teaching career also includes being the Head of the Fine Arts
Department at Kinnaird College, an Assistant Professorship at the College of Art and Architecture at
Al-Khair University Lahore, and a Lecturer for the Fine Arts Department at the University of Punjab.
Dr. David serves as a member of multiple boards such as the University of Punjab, Lahore College
for Women University, and International Council of Museums. Dr. David holds a PhD in the History of
Art from the Lahore College for Women University, Lahore, as well as a Masters in Fine Arts from the
University of Punjab where she was also awarded a Gold Medal in Graphic Design.

(:_ccl\lljlg?tion: Associate Professor, Economics, Lahore University of Management Sciences

Dr.Ali Cheema holds a PhD in Economics from the University of Cambridge, U.K. He has remained
associated with the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) as an Associate Professor in
Economics and Political Science since 2008. In addition, some of Dr. Cheema’s notable professional
affiliations include his positions as Director at the Mahbub ul Hag Resource Center, Member of the board
of Trustees at the Institute of Development Studies Sussex U.K., Member of the Rhodes Scholarship
Selection Committee, Member of the board at the Punjab Population Innovation Fund and Member of
the board at the International Growth Centre (IGC). He has also served as a technical member of the
Government of Punjab’s Working Group on Smart-Testing and Smart-Containment of the COVID-19
outbreak. Dr. Cheema has been awarded with numerous honors, awards, and fellowships including
Harvard South Asia Initiative Fellow, the Cambridge Commonwealth Trust Bursary, and The Cambridge
Journal of Economics Political Economy Society Fund Award.

Occupation: Independent Development Consultant

Ms. Maliha Hamid Hussein works as an independent development consultant with a Broad range of
development experience in diverse sectors. Ms. Hussein has extensive experience of working with
all the major multilateral and bilateral agencies including the World Bank, the Asian Development
Bank, and the United Nations Development Program. She has also been career diplomat with the
Pakistan Foreign Service (1978-82). She currently serves as a Director of Sahil and previously held
directorships in Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund and Enterprise & Development Consulting (Pvt.)
Limited. Ms. Hussein obtained her M.Sc. in agricultural economics from Michigan State University and
a certificate in international law, economics and politics from Oxford University, UK.

Occupation: CEO Autosoft Dynamics (Pvt.) Limited

Ms.Sadia Khan has extensive experience in the field of Information Technology and Product
Development for the Financial Services Industry. She has been serving on the Board of Directors of
AutoSoft Dynamics since 2005. She took over as CEO of AutoSoft back in February 2017. Before
joining AutoSoft Ms. Khan worked with Deutsche Bank New York, NY. Ms. Khan completed her
Bachelors in Computer Science from Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey. She is currently the
member of board of Naseeb Online Services (Pvt.) Ltd.
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Friends and Supporters of Kashf,

COVID-19 has impacted low-income households in the outgoing vear.
Women have been further disadvantaged in terms of bearing the brunt of the
economic and social fallout resulting from lockdowns, economic contractions,
and reduced market activity. Given that this is the exact target market for
Kashf Foundation, Kashf has shown foresight and leadership in terms of relief
and rehabilitation of its clients. Using client centric channels to understand
the needs and aspirations of its clients, Kashf has undertaken a set of key
initiatives including ration distribution, client specific loan rescheduling,
trainings and mentoring on business continuity and digital channels for
micro-businesses, testing mobile wallets for loan disbursements, and the development and disbursement of
recapitalization loans, to help mitigate the economic impact of COVID-19. Through multiple interactions with Kashf
clients, we have seen that a greater percentage of Kashf supported micro-businesses were able to sustain through
lock-downs, compared with more established enterprises, and Kashf clients were not only able to contribute
income to their households but also provide employment to others.

Overall, COVID-19 has shown that innovation and nimbleness can help mitigate the impact of a crisis even as big
as a global pandemic. All over the world, we have seen a transition towards a ‘new normal’ through adaptations,
inventions, and recalibrations. Kashf Foundation has stayed on the forefront of COVID-19 response through a
constant evaluation of client pulse followed by quick and appropriate actions and changes in the organization’s
service delivery.

Moreover, even though this was an extremely challenging year, Kashf was able to deliver on all financial
benchmarks; closing the year with an Operational Self Sustainability ratio of 115%, a Financial Self Sustainability
ratio of 105% and disbursement of 547,617 loans worth PKR 26.86 hillion. As we approach the next year, Kashf
remains committed to introducing innovative products and services focused on client’s needs to support them
in their journey of rehabilitation. We are certain that with the continuing support of our partners, commitment of
Kashf staff and the resilience of Kashf’s clients, we will be able to create sustainable livelihoods.

| would like to thank all our partners, funders, donors, and the Kashf Management team for their hard work and
effort in sustaining the Kashf mission.

Regards,

Dr. Hafiz A. Pasha
Chairman

Board of Directors
Kashf Foundation
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Managing Director’s Message

Dear Friends of Kashf,

In the last year, Kashf has been working to adapt business processes, create
flexibilities, and make customizations at the client level to empower its clients to
better cope with the effects of COVID-19. Kashf has introduced innovations on the
product side by developing a women centric recapitalization loan which helps women
micro-entrepreneurs whose businesses have been impacted by COVID-19 to rebuild
their business assets and inventory. Kashf has also been testing and experimenting
with digitalization to increase efficiencies in disbursements and recoveries by using
new alternative delivery channels. Kashf has also launched a comprehensive training
and capacity building program for its clients to help build their business and financial
management skills wherein Kashf aims to train over 250,000 low-income women
in the coming years. Moreover, to protect its staff and ensure safety, Kashf Foundation worked towards creating
incentives and awareness for COVID-19 vaccination. By June 2021, 94% of Kashf staff had received at least their
first vaccine dose which is significantly greater than the national percentage of 6.1%.

The shining stars of adaption have, however, been Kashf's women micro-entrepreneurs who have shown a
dynamic mix of skills and coping mechanisms to sustain cash flows. Through the last year thousands of Kashf
clients have shown remarkable courage and perseverance to develop solutions to the needs of their households
as they braced the onslaught of economic and social impact of COVID-19. This year’s annual report is a very
special edition as we showcase the stories of five of our clients who have innovatively adapted and diversified to
accommodate the impact of COVID-19. They are indeed the trailblazers that are paving the way.

These inspiring women micro entrepreneurs are testament to the fact that when women are provided opportunities
they rise to the occasion despite being worse off in terms of endowments and entitlements. These stories highlight
how micro-businesses have far reaching inter-generational impact and can change deep rooted mindsets about
gender norms and gender roles. This annual report is dedicated to not just Kashf clients but to the millions of
women around the world who are standing tall in the face of adversity and responding to challenges brought forth
by COVID-19.

As we gear up for another exciting year, | am thankful to our supporters and friends for espousing our mission and
vision and the Board of Directors for their continued support and mentorship. | would also like to thank the entire
Kashf team for their hard work and dedication towards ensuring that no client is left behind in their recovery from
the economic and social impact of COVID-19.

Best Regards,

Roshaneh Zafar
Managing Director
Kashf Foundation
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Loan Utilization
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66% loan used in
female led business

30% loan used in male
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4% loan used in family
business
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50% staff reporting to
female managers

50% female staff
gender ratio
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Year on Year Operational Performance

Kashf Foundation closed June 2021 with 550,090 active clients which is a 12.23% increase over June 2020
numbers. In terms of amount disbursed, Kashf’s year on year growth has been 26% with disbursements
amounting to PKR 26.86 billion made in this year compared to PKR 21.30 billion in the previous year. Resultingly,
the outstanding portfolio witnessed a 20% growth compared with June 2020. The average disbursement size
for Kashf loans for the year was PKR 49,041. In terms of product diversity, Kashf has disbursed 390,811 Kashf
Karobar Loans, 19,584 Kashf Murabaha, 87,321 Kashf Easy Loans and 10,539 Kashf Maweshi Karza. The Kashf
Karobar Karza continues to be the main lending product for the Foundation with disbursements exceeding PKR
21.40 billion. In addition, Kashf Murabaha worth more than PKR 1 billion were disbursed in Noswhera, Manshera,
Mardan and other districts of KPK. In the year, Kashf developed and disbursed a recapitalization loan (Kashf Bahali
Karza) to help clients re-invest in their businesses which had been impacted by the pandemic. On June 2021, a
total of 34,810 recapitalization loans worth PKR 1.94 billion were provided to women micro-entrepreneurs to help
them re-establish their businesses post COVID-19.

Product Loans Disbursed

General Business Loan - Kashf Karobar Karza 390,811
Shariah Compliant Product - Kashf Murabaha 19,584
School Finance Program - Kashf School Sarmaya 92
Livestock Loan - Kashf Maweshi Karza 10,539
Consumption Loan - Kashf Easy Loan 87,321
Recapitalization Loan - Kashf Bahali Karza 34,810
Emergency Loan for Existing Clients - Kashf Sahulat Karza 4,460
Total 547,617

On the insurance front, Kashf Foundation continues to remain the largest provider of micro-insurance in Pakistan
with 32 % of the market share with respect to total policy holders in Pakistan. Kashf has provided over 2.74 million
insurance policies under both life and health insurance. With respect to the total sum insured across Pakistan,
Kashf also holds the market share at 24.9 % with a monetary value of PKR 78.65 billion.



Year on Year Financial Performance

Despite the unprecedented economic contraction due to the pandemic, Kashf Foundation’s financial performance
and outlook has remained positive. In this year, the operational self-sufficiency increased to 115% from 104%
in June 2020, while the financial self-sufficiency also increased to 105% from 97% in June 2020. The Return
on Asset(ROA), Return on Equity(ROE), and Debt to Equity Ratio have also been maintained within acceptable
benchmarks i.e. at 3.10%, 15.88% and 78:22 respectively. Moreover, the administrative efficiency ratio has
remained stable despite the increased costs associated with operating in the pandemic. This signifies that Kashf
has capitalized on improved processes and procedures and undertaken efficient resource planning to maintain
sound financial health despite difficult economic and operational circumstances.

Ratios June 2021 June 2020
Operational Self Sufficiency 115% 104%
Financial Self Sufficiency 105% 97%
Adjusted Return on Assets 3.10% 1.0%
Adjusted Return on Equity 15.88% 5.16%
Debt-Equity Ratio 78:22 80:20
Administrative Efficiency 16.21% 16.16%

17
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Kashf’s Human Resources Dashboard

In line with its mission of transforming lives, Kashf Foundation provides a fair, equitable, and harassment-free
workplace to its employees. Inclusion and diversity are key priorities for Kashf and the organization focuses on
creating and upholding a distinctive culture which derives from Kashf’s core values of integrity, responsibility,
dignity, innovation, responsiveness, and sustainability. Based on the premise that embracing diversity is pivotal for
a company’s success, Kashf’s human resource policies value and promote diversity.

Gender is a key focus for Kashf, and even though Pakistan’s female labor force participation rate is a mere 25%
, Kashf has a 50% gender ratio in its staff base. Kashf has been able to maintain gender diversity via specialized
programs at multiple levels which start from the policies in place at the level of recruitment and extends throughout
the course of employment with Kashf. The table below shows the Gender Ratio across the field tiers.

Business Development Officers 50% 50%
Branch Managers 49% 51%
Area Managers 52% 48%
Regional Managers 50% 90%

In this year, Kashf’s operational and administrative staff base was 2,621. Kashf was able to maintain its institutional
gender ratio at 50%. The table below shows the key human resources numbers for the year.

June 2021 June 2020

Total Head Office Staff 100 100
Total Field Staff 2,521 2,702
Operational And Administrative Staff 2,621 2,802
Staff Gender Ratio 50% 50%
Yearly Turnover 14% 15%
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Bushra Bibi: Navigating in a Man'’s World

Women’s mobility is a major issue given existing social norms in Pakistan. In fact a CERP survey undertaken in
Lahore in 2017 revealed that over 70% of males discouraged female relatives from availing public transport, as
it was seen too unsafe for women . The inability to address women'’s transportation needs has been one of the
biggest limiting factors for hundreds of thousands of women who cannot access schools, colleges, market places,
and offices. Bushra Bibi, a Kashf client from Lahore, has found her calling by helping women reclaim their space
in public by providing a safe and socially acceptable way to travel through her pink rickshaw.

Bushra Bibi has always tried to find opportunities even when faced
by the most insurmountable challenges. Compelled by financial
constraints, while her husband was alive, Bushra Bibi contributed
to her household income through multiple small avenues such as
a small-time matchmaking services and by tailoring clothes for
neighbors and family. She could have done more, she recounts,
but societal norms dictated that she not work out of her home.
However, after her husband passed away from a sudden heart
attack; Bushra Bibi decided to break away from gender segregated
businesses with low-returns and start something innovative and |
big. Her idea was to start something that would not only help her
earn a higher income, but also enable other women from her
community to fulfill their aspirations. After some weeks of thinking
and brainstorming, Bushra Bibi came across an advertisement
in the newspaper announcing a subsidized rickshaw scheme for
women, which could only be deemed as a sign from God.

The prospects of being the only female rickshaw driver in her |
community excited and scared her in equal measure. She was
concerned about what people would say, how her in-laws and
children would perceive it, and about the long hours and potential -
security concerns. But Bushra was driven by her conviction to achieve something big. The only challenge that
remained was how to arrange money to make the down-payment for the rickshaw. She thought about asking
family and friends, but having relied on their support since her husband’s death she started exploring other
alternatives. Some women from her community had taken loans from Kashf Foundation for their businesses, so
she enquired about their experience with Kashf. Upon receiving positive feedback from existing clients, she was
able to quickly secure a loan of PKR 40,000, which she used to make the down payment and first installment for
the rickshaw.

At breakneck speed, Bushra learned how to drive, managed to get a driver’s license, and completed all formalities
to procure the rickshaw. She recalls making naive mistakes in the early days when she initially started driving on the
roads. But remembers that many people enabled and advocated for her, especially Lahore’s traffic wardens. Within
a few months, Bushra Bibi was able to sign on some ‘regulars’ including school children, women professionals and
school teachers that she transported back and forth. All these riders preferred a female rickshaw driver because
they felt safer with a woman. One of the school teachers she used to provide conveyance to shared that her
husband had been telling her to quit teaching because he was not happy about the long journey she was making
with an unknown male rickshaw driver but changed his stance after she started using Bushra Bibi’s rickshaw.



Bushra Bibi’s days were packed, but she would still
come home in the middle of the day to take care
of her household duties. She was undaunted in her
resolve and did not pay any heed to the people who
taunted her, despite the fact that like many women
in her situation, a significant portion of her time went
into domestic work. However, the appreciation she
received from women customers also helped her to
remain steadfast in the face of any social criticism
and in the light of her additional responsibilities.
She was convinced that her hard work would pay
off and soon enough, the naysayers also stopped
their opposition and she was able to gain everyone’s
support.

Bushra Bibi started earning around PKR 40,000
from her regular rides. After a year, she also secured
another loan from Kashf to buy a motorcycle for
her elder son who wanted to become a rider with a : :
popular ride hailing service in Lahore. She was also able to acquire small household items that made her role as
a homemaker easier — these included a refrigerator, a microwave and a room cooler.

Things were looking up for Bushra Bibi and her family, but then the COVID-19 pandemic emerged and the
government responded with a nation-wide lockdown. At first the lockdown and its effect despite being dire
seemed temporary, but when the Government announced school closures and office closures, Bushra Bibi lost
all her regular customers. Bushra Bibi had to quickly cope with the evolving situation, and started offering shorter
routes on her rickshaw and resumed her earlier businesses of stitching and match making. The variability in
income meant that there were days they ate two meals instead of three, but she continued to work hard in order
to make ends meet. Today, despite the schools being closed, Bushra Bibi is able to earn around 75% of her pre-
COVID income.

T Sy W E iy Bushra Bibi is a strong proponent of working

5 : smart and working hard in order to pave the
way for a better future. When asked about the
next big step she would like to take, Bushra Bibi
shared her wish to buy a van which she can
use instead of her rickshaw to pick and drop
students, teachers and other professionals. She
feels she will be able to carry more passengers
in a bigger vehicle, and also be less restricted
in case of future lockdowns by providing intra-
city travel. Her dream is to enable women
to access more opportunities through her
transport services. Bushra Bibi’s vision is in
fact corroborated by research, which shows that providing women access to smaller vehicles that fill up quickly
and are run on crowded routes can be a sustainable option for meeting the transportation needs of females.
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Saira Bano: Peering through the Kaleidoscope

At first glance Saira Bano’s small
but well stocked shop feels like
peering into a kaleidoscope full of
myriad shapes, colors and designs.
The shelves are well-stocked
with inventory; some items are
sorted by color, while others are
sorted by size or category. In the
middle of this organized chaos
stands an accomplished woman
micro-entrepreneur who has been
instrumental in turning around the
financial fate of her household.

Saira’s husband had to shut down
his thriving grocery store because
of health issues, consequently
Saira began to cut back on
essential expenses, which meant
immense suffering for her and her K
two children. They looked towards | o
her husband’s family for support,
but they did not facilitate them
at all, despite the fact that her
husband had helped them financially in the past. Two long years were spent on hand-outs and hand-me-downs
from Saira’s parents and siblings. Saira started stitching clothes for some of her family members, but the income
was barely enough to meet food expenses. To assist Saira with her stitching business, her husband would help by
purchasing basic materials that she required such as thread for stitching, laces and buttons etc from the market.
This made her realize that there was a potential for setting up a small shop in her house to sell basic items needed
for tailoring by women, as most women in her community had to rely on men to purchase things from the market.
Data has shown that women'’s access to markets and their mobility is closely linked to socio-cultural factors such
as taboos regarding women traveling alone or without a male member of the family, a fact which Saira saw as an
opportunity.

She discussed the idea with her husband, who was very supportive but told her that they needed capital for buying
merchandize as having a well-stocked store was an important requisite for the venture’s success. Saira did not
want to borrow money from her brothers who had already done so much for them. At this juncture Saira found
out about Kashf Foundation and decided to visit the Kashf branch with her husband, and was pleasantly surprised
to find out about the minimal requirements for accessing a loan. Within a week she was able to get her first loan,
which enabled her to start off with some essential inventory comprising of boxes of different colored thread and
other raw materials required for stitching, all of which sold quickly. Encouraged by the response and seeing the
demand for other products, she was able to quickly add more items, which she bought from wholesale markets
in order to increase her profit margins.



Saira Bano has continued to build her business and has also sustained her relationship with Kashf Foundation.
She has taken incremental loans to add several new ranges of products such as laces, buttons, bangles, costume
jewelry, cosmetics, and even undergarments. Starting from a loan of Rs.30,000, 7 years ago, Saira’s business
volume has grown to absorb a loan 2.5 times larger. Saira has diversified her procurement options by purchasing
high quality and yet affordable items from Haripur and Rawalpindi. A major Unique Selling Point(USP) for Saira
Bano’s business has been her ability to provide a wide array of products to her mostly women clientele since she
has expanded the business from a basic shop to a one stop store for women in the area.

The impact of COVID-19 and lockdowns on her business, left her income largely unaffected. In fact, while big
retailers suffered losses due to forced closures by the government to control the spread of COVID-19, Saira was
able to run her community based shop on a daily basis and continued to provide essential items to women. With
a keen foresight into inventory management, Saira’s shop was always well stocked and catered fully to customer
demands.

Today, as a result of her business, Saira has been able to send all her children to school, while her husband
has been able to get back on his feet as well by establishing an electrician business. Together, they earn up to
Rs.80,000 per month, which is not only sufficient to cover basic household expenses but also allows her to save
and reinvest in the growth of her business as well. According to Saira, the greatest fruit of her labour has been her
capacity to fulfill the wishes of her children, which had been compromised for years due to economic hardships.
The positive impact of her business has not only been limited to her family, but there has been a spillover effect
in the community in terms of the acceptability of women led businesses in general. Seeing Saira succeed, other
women in the area also found courage to set up small shops in their houses to sell basic items such as thread
spools. Saira takes strength from the entrepreneurship she has enabled and even shared that she has taken some
items such as thread spools out of her inventory to reduce competition for these new ventures and allow other
women’s businesses to flourish. Saira’s success highlights the fact that women entrepreneurs not only lead to
greater employment opportunities within their communities, but can also become avenues of change for other
women by carving out new business spaces.
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Majeeda Bibi: A Powerhouse of Entrepreneurship

Venturing into larger markets for both purchase of raw materials and sale of finished products is a key success
factor for micro-businesses. However, a majority of women entrepreneurs tend to focus on the informal sector as
they are discouraged to work outside of their homes and are unable to leverage on market opportunities. However
Kashf’s client, Majeeda Bibi from Sukkur has successfully demonstrated the benefits of enhanced backward and
forward market linkages in order to increase revenues for her rilli making business, despite facing huge social
constraints. Majeeda Bibi is an ace producer of rillis and a hardnosed business-woman, who exclusively sells her
rillis in Karachi in order to get better prices for her exquisitely handcrafted pieces.

The art of rilli making and the intricate patterns that
characterize the craft have been passed down inter-
generationally from mother to daughter and date
back many centuries. Majeeda Bibi, like others in the
neighborhood, started making rillis at an early age. First as
a piece rate worker for others as she did not have finances
to purchase raw materials and then later at a small scale
when she was able to save some funds to start her own
production. After a few years of gaining experience in
producing and selling her own rillis, she approached Kashf
for a loan. The Kashf staff were able to quickly analyse her
business potential and provided her with a loan to grow
her business.

From the first Kashf loan Majeeda Bibi bought raw
materials for the rillis from the close by town of Shikarpur,
as the rates were cheaper for purchasing in bulk. She
worked hard along with her daughters and also hired
some other women from the neighborhood in order to
quickly turn all that raw material into beautiful pieces. At
the same time, she started looking at further backward -
linkages and discovered that she could find inputs at a much cheaper rate in the city of Larkana and quickly
shifted her procurement there, while at the same time negotiating better prices for her end products. Within a
year, Majeeda Bibi was able to grow her business manifold.

In the following year, with a larger loan from Kashf, she decided to explore selling her products in Karachi. She
had a lot of reservations as the Karachi market could only be accessed through agents and very few rilli producers
were able to sell directly to shopkeepers, so she worried that she may not be able to sell even a single piece
without the right connections. But Majeeda Bibi was happy to have all her reservations and insecurities put to
rest as shopkeepers in the market readily picked up her work and told her they were willing to buy more of her
merchandize, given her unique designs and excellent quality. In Karachi, she also found out that the inputs were
30% cheaper than Larkana and since that day she exclusively buys all the raw material from Karachi, which has
helped her increase profit margins, despite paying better wages to people who work for her.

There are several other reasons why Majeeda Bibi is able to outperform other rilli makers; firstly she has chosen
the best skilled artisans, around 25 in number, within her neighborhood that work exclusively with her as she
pays them better returns. Moreover, she has established a sound system of record keeping for the artisans and



the shops to make sure that she is always on top of her liabilities
and assets. Furthermore, Majeeda buys only the best materials to
use for her rillis and despite assurances from the vendors that the
colors of the materials will not run, she still hand washes each
bale of cloth to guarantee that its color is fast. As design is the
key element of her products, along with drawing inspiration from
her own imagination, she also visits different markets on a regular
basis to keep abreast of new demands and color themes.

Another key factor for success is her focus on quality control - once
she finalizes the design she makes a kit of all the materials needed
for a rilli and hands it over to the artisan, after which she monitors
the progress of each piece. She also gives the artisans regular
feedback on their work to ensure the quality of the end product.
Initially, she had to spend a great deal of time with each artisan to
build their capacity to deliver the expected quality, but over time
this has changed considerably as artisans are able to produce the : -
standard required to sell the rillis in Karachi. Once a month, she goes to Karachi to sell the merchandize, as selling
in bulk helps her to get a better rate and also cuts down on transportation costs. Generally, Majeeda Bibi sells
partially finished rillis in Karachi because she says that the shopkeepers there are able to do the finishing better
and can also customize it based on customer preferences.

While COVID-19 impacted the economy badly, Majeeda Bibi’s business has remained relatively protected to
market closures and the elasticity of demand for her products has remained stable as she produces for a niche
market which is more quality conscious than cost conscious. Moreover, during lock-downs she was able to work
directly with both home based artisans and market vendors without any trouble as she had built good relations
with them over the years.

At present, Majeeda Bibi is able to make a profit of PKR 1,000 on
each rilli she sells to Karachi and can earn upwards of PKR 35,000
a month in profits. Over the years, through the money she has
saved from her business, she has been able to pay for the marriage
ceremonies of her seven children and has also the infrastructure
.~ of her home. She has also installed a solar panel at her house to
L~ . deal with the excessive power shortages in the area. Majeeda Bibi
says that without her first Kashf loan she would not have been
able to grow her business and would have still been struggling
financially. In the future, Majeeda Bibi plans to continue to expand
her business through larger loans. Her advice to others who want to
run a successful business is to focus on both backward and forward
linkages for the business and remain abreast with latest market
. trends. Undoubtedly, women entrepreneurs like Majeedan Bibi have
to take many risks, some calculated and some not, to succeed in
sustaining their businesses, for statistics show that over 20% of
women led businesses fail in their first years and 50% do not sustain beyond five years. Majeedan Bibi has
definitely beaten these odds by availing market opportunities at each step of the way.
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Shazia Samri: From Dreams to Achievement

Visibly at ease in the busy market
of Yakatoot, Shazia Samri recounts
her chilhood; she was born into a
conservative low income Pathan
household her childhood was heavily
marred by financial struggles. These
emanated from strict social norms
which completely barred her mother
from earning an income, while her
father struggled to make ends meet
as a sole earner. Unfortunately for the
family, while Shazia was still in school,
her father passed away, which pushed
them into further economic distress.

Cautiously, her mother started an

embroidery business which meant that

Shazia had to leave school to help with

household chores and eventually she started helping her mother with the embroidery work as well. Shazia was
very interested to work at a beauty salon, with aspirations to own one of her own one day, but her mother and
other family members did not think it was socially acceptable for a woman to work outside the house. Shazia took
their disapproval at face value and grabbed every opportunity to learn beautician techniques and skills without
formally working at a beauty salon.

After her marriage, her husband was supportive of her idea to set up a salon and soon after she started her
business in a close by rented space. Initially, Shazia used some money she had saved from her daily expenses,
while she also convinced her husband to invest some of his money into her business. Shazia was faced with
numerous challenges when she set out on her journey: low education, no work experience and hesitation in
interacting with the outside world given her cloistered upbringing. But instead of giving up, Shazia used all her
energies to overcome challenges through the process of learning from her mistakes and using each failure as
an opportunity to improve herself. She began by emulating what she thought was ‘success’ — learning from
her husband how he dealt with shopkeepers, copying customers whose communication impressed her, and
enhancing her beautician skills in order to become the best at her craft. Within a few years she didn’t have to
imitate other people’s good practices and her hard work and perseverance to establish a successful enterprise
paid off. Steadily her customer base started to grow and her income began to increase which necessitated that
she improve the outlook and appearance of her parlor.

To raise funds for her salon expansion, Shazia approached Kashf for a loan. She used her first loan to improve the
infrastructure of her parlor which included refurbishing it and adding new products and services to the existing
menu. With her second loan from Kashf she moved the salon to a bigger space and made other improvements.
Gaining confidence from her incremental success, Shazia decided to use a novel price strategy - while other
beauty parlors in nearby areas choose to charge higher rates for their services, Shazia Bibi altered her approach
by lowering prices to increase client footfall, thus consciously following a penetration pricing approach to create
demand for her services. This proved to be a very effective change in her business model as clients were extremely
pleased with receiving quality services at a low price. This also helped her build repeat clientele.



Owing to her commitment to not give up her dream, her
hard work and her innovative business approach, Shazia
has been able increase her household income from PKR
6,000 to PKR 50,000. She was able to buy a fridge, .
furniture, crockery, and contributes regularly to household
expenses and her children’s school fees. Moreover, as time
has passed and her salon’s popularity has increased, as she
has continued to plan and expand the scale of her beauty
parlor to cater to more customers. She has also diversified
her business by taking an additional loan from Kashf to
buy fabric from Lahore to sell to her salon customers. She
realized she already had a place of business and clients, all she needed was another high demand product to sell
without too much incremental investment, thus using a blended marketing approach to add to her income stream.

When the devastating COVID-19 hit Pakistan in February 2020 and the lockdown was imposed in March 2020,
beauty parlors were one of the most impacted sectors in the country. However, this did not stop Shazia from
continuing her business. Being an established entrepreneur and a confident business woman, she was able to
maneuver against this challenge by running her business from her house while ensuring adherence to COVID-19
protocols such as wearing of masks and sanitizing her work area repeatedly. Moreover, she also continued to sell
fabric she had bought from Lahore. Shazia Bibi’s business acumen and quick thinking allowed her to retain around
70% of her income in the months of lock down and after the lockdown was lifted, she was able to scale up her
income to pre COVID levels.

= Shazia Bibi has been a source of inspiration for
~— young girls in her community and her family.
~ Besides teaching her sister this trade, she
~ has taught fifty other girls on how to become
successful beauticians. She not only taught them
different skills such as make-up, haircutting, and
dyeing but also what products to buy, how to deal
with different suppliers and how to establish their
own parlors, all important lessons she has learnt
along the way. In fact, she goes with them to the
market and teaches them how to negotiate with
the suppliers to ensure they get the best deal.
Shazia has not only created economic prosperity
for her household but has also been able to contribute towards creating space for other women to follow her
lead. Undoubtedly, mentoring is an important lever that can advance more women in their work and in addressing
economic opportunities they might otherwise not avail, something Shazia Bibi has passionately set out to do for
other women in her community.
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Rubina Bibi: An Equal Partner

The hallmark of a great business is a passionate micro-entrepreneur who runs the business not just to contribute
to household income but because the business fulfils their self-actualization needs. Rubina Bibi, a Kashf client
from Multan, is one such micro-entrepreneur who has used her passmn for cooklng to create a lunchbox delivery
and frozen food business in partnership with —
her husband, which not only sustains their
household but also gives Rubina a continuous
sense of personal accomplishment. In
Pakistan, gendered norms dictate that
women take on all domestic chores, which
generates high disparity in work burdens
where women work 11 times more than
men in terms of unpaid care. However,
Rubina and her husband have worked out
a different formula over time but the journey
wasn't easy.

When Rubina got married, she was a shy and
naive student of intermediate; her husband
believed that a woman’s place was inside
the house. Hence, while he was responsible
for being the bread earner, it was her job to
undertake all household duties. Her husband
had a thriving boutique and cloth business and was considered the most resourceful person in the family. However,
just two years after marriage, he lost a great deal of his money to fraud, which led to huge business losses. As
their financial hardship increased, friends and family members started distancing themselves from the struggling
couple. A household which had seldom been in want of anything, was faced with huge uncertainty regarding their
future survival. They had some rental income but it was insufficient to cover household expenses.

Seeing their new circumstances, Rubina knew that she will have to rise to the occasion in spite of her husband’s
patriarchal attitudes towards women’s economic participation. It took a lot of cajoling and convincing, but she
was able to impress upon him to allow her to start a small home based business. Rubina was an excellent
cook and therefore it seemed only natural that she start a business in line with her skills. While she had ideas
for her business venture like starting with selling frozen foods and then branching out into home cooked meals,
she did not have access to capital. She first approached a nearby bank for a loan, but was unable to fulfill the
requirements and documentation for accessing a loan. At the same time, she was also harassed by some of the
bank staff during her interactions. She was extremely discouraged but could not breathe a word of the harassment
to her husband, as he would have completely forbidden her to seek access to a loan. At this very hopeless juncture
she learnt about Kashf Foundation’s gender centric loan program. For Rubina the Kashf credit experience was in
direct contrast to her earlier banking experience, as the loan was easy to access with very simple loan processing
requirements. Upon contacting Kashf, Rubina’s loan was approved within days and she was able to secure capital
to begin her business.

When she started her business it was the month of Ramzan so she seized the opportunity and began by making
frozen food items like samosas, rolls, cutlets and kebabs. These proved to be an instant hit amongst neighbors,
friends and family members. In the first month she was able to generate a revenue of about PKR 50,000. This
income was readily welcomed into the house and helped reduce some of their economic hardship. During her



visits to several banks and Kashf for a loan she had realized that there was a market for packaged meals in offices.
S0 she decided that she would test the market and see if she could make lunch boxes for office employees. She
made some brochures for marketing and dropped them at nearby bank branches.

She did not have to wait long before she received a call from a bank employee asking her to send in a sample,
which if deemed satisfactory, would lead to an order of four lunchboxes. Rubina diligently prepared and sent the
samples across and they liked the food so much that ten co-workers decided to place their order for lunch. Soon
through word of mouth, other professionals also started calling to place orders and she was able to secure regular
clients from three banks. Rubina used to send the lunches through her nephew on his bike but frequently the
nephew would not be punctual and at times the food would arrive its destination with spillage. Seeing the success
and potential of her business, her husbhand started getting involved, initially by taking the responsibility of the lunch
box delivery. And then gradually, he also started helping her in the food preparation. Now he not only manages the
deliveries but also undertakes procurement of all groceries and also helps Rubina in the food preparation. Seeing
Rubina cook day in and day out has also inspired her husband and he has learned to cook as well, which given
his earlier stance on gender roles is a huge shift.

In terms of cash management Rubina diligently keeps records of all their customers and knows the status of
payments due, so she can remind her husband when he goes to make the deliveries for the necessary follow up.
Rubina has been able to make a success out of her businesses, however, when COVID-19 hit and the offices were
closed with employees working from home due to Government Standard Operating Procedure (SOPS) she suffered
considerably. But as the lockdowns were lifted, she was able to recover to pre-pandemic levels. However, as a
means to diversify her income and protect herself from further income shocks due to COVID-19, she has also set
up an additional business. She secured a new loan from Kashf to set up a cloth trading business which gives her
additional cash-flows and is easy to manage from her house. Rubina and her husband buy fabric from the whole
sale market and then sell it within their community. Her cloth trading business has an edge over others because
of the experience that her husband had of running a boutique and shop. She also continued to supply frozen food
items throughout COVID-19 lockdown which also helped supplement their income.

Income from the two businesses has allowed the w_@r" o Ry
family to regain financial security and to afford a | .,ﬁi e:%
better standard of living for their family. Their son ‘ﬁf 1R,
attends a private school in the area and they intend okw Ik '

to send their daughters to the same school when
they are old enough. As for the relationship she
shares with her husband, Rubina feels it is now !
definitely more equal as Rubina and her husband
see themselves as a team, which is working in
partnership for the betterment of their family, while
her husband definitely appreciates the time she
invests in domestic chores. Her husband proudly
places credit for their current happiness and
standard of living on the courage, foresight and
perseverance of Rubina, which is a complete change
in terms of the traditional roles attributed to women
in society. Rubina and her husband stand out in their community, where both of them are making commitments
to accelerate gender equality within their home and beyond.

.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Kashf Foundation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements as at 30 June 2021
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Kashf Foundation, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021 and the statement of income and
expenditure, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
accumulated funds, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
-explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, statement of income and expenditure, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in accumulated funds and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June
2021 and of the surplus, total comprehensive income, the changes in accumulated funds
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the Ether information. The other information comprises the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regardiﬂ )
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

# Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

13-
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to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

the statement of financial position, statement of income and expenditure, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in accumulated
funds and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company's business; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

Other Matters

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 were audited by another firm of
chartered accountants whose report dated 5 October 2020 expressed an unmodified
opinion.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Abdullah Fahad Masood.

A Yok Rhwder
EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 11 October 2021
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

MNote 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
ASSETS (Restated)
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 6 861,896,243 808,845,017
Intangible assets 7 37,944,865 23,490,152
Invesiment property 8 88,150,750 82,503,900
Long term investments ] 180,515,000 -
Long term loans 10 217,730 626,924
Long term micro-credit loan portfolio 11 216,962 35,743,313
Financial assets used for hedging 12 103,255,478 540,788 445
Long term deposits 13 463,360 4,978,660
1,272,660,388 1,596,976,411
CURRENT ASSETS
Micro-credit loan portfolio 14 15,218,745,610 12,228,496 867
Kashf Murabaha portfolio 15 539,440,958 405,701,513
Accrued service charges 16 190,960,347 637 442 247
Short term investments 17 1,213,032,111 2,301,094,893
Financial assets used for hedging 12 51,112,473 809,083,642
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 18 604,887,258 566,258,692
Cash and bank balances 19 5,923,306,812 6,111,038,513
23,741,485,569 23,059,116,367
25,014,145,957 24,656,092,778
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
FUNDS
Donated funds 20 240,035,924 235,395,910
Accumulated surplus - revenue reserve 21 3,908,882,532 3,284,676,599
Loan loss reserve - revenue reserve 21 823,285,358 678,394,521
Hedging reserve - capital reserve 23,427,241 (107.241,160)
Surplus on revaluation of land - capital reserve 22 300,203,137 300,203,137
5,295,834,192 4,391,429,007
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 23 10,162,784,549 13,014,743,858
Lease liabilities 24 128,810,341 135,554,973
10,291,594,890 13,150,298,831
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term financing 23 8,071,550,336 5,998,382,280
Current portion of lease liabilities 24 68,511,543 64,697 137
Short term borrowings 25 43,415,547 133,555,461
Deferred grants 26 386,277,030 34,321,415
Accrued markup 27 417,188,716 611,718,246
Trade and other payables 28 439,763,703 271,690,401
9,426,716,875 7,114,364,940
25,014,145 957 24 656,092 778
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29
The annexed notes form an integral pant of these financial statementsmh

y/ 2

( Chle}?‘ina ndial Officer Director
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
(Restated)

Mark-up and other charges on micro-credit loan portfolio 30 4,839,852,835 4,979,034 703
Profit on Kashf Murabaha 161,225,292 171,858,449
Grant income k) | 67,849,808 79,129,085
Return on investments and bank deposits 32 633,592,069 626,108,560
5,702,520,004 5,856,130,797
Programme cost 33 (2,479,045,843) (2,171,872,117)
Grant expenses 34 (67,849,808) (79,129,085)
Finance cost 35 (2,022,447 ,965 (2,640,567, 373)
(4,569,343,616) (4,891,568,575)

1,133,176,388 964,562,222
Management and administrative expenses 36 (433,667,542) {410,998 612)
Other expenses 37 (28,426,040) (375,466,765)
QOther income 38 98,013,964 31,519,742
(364,079,618) (754,945,635)

Surplus for the year TEB,tIBﬁ!T?tI 209,616,587

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statement%ﬁ

N Rl /-

Chief Executive Officer lelaf %anci&l Dfi‘lcer Direc
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
(Restated)
Surplus for the year A 769,096,770 209,616,587
Other comprehensive income [ (loss)
Items to be reclassified fo income or expenditure in
subsequent periods:
Hedging reserve - changes in fair value 130,668,401 (236,451,545)
Items not to be reclassified to income or expenditure in
subsequent periods:
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - 90,725,000
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year B 130,668,401 (145,726 545)
Total comprehensive income for the year A+B 899,765,171 63,890,042

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

W

Chief Executive Officer ief Financial Officer

-
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KASHF FOUNDATION
(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF ACCUMULATED FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
Reverue resenes Capital reserves
Surplus on
Donated Accurmulated Lean loss revaluation of land
funds surplus resere Hedging reserves and bullding Total
Rupees
Balance as at 1.July 2019 235,385,910 3237 035,045 516,415 488 128,210,385 206,478,137 4327 538 965
: L
Surplus for the year - restated (nose 2.4} | - ” . I . 209,816 587
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - 451,545 90,725,000 (145,726
200,616,587 = (2365 451 545) 90,725,000 63,890,042
Transfermed from general funds to
loan loss resarve - (1B1.975.083) 161,875,033 - .
Balance as at 30 June 2020 235,395,910 3,284,676,599 678,394,521 107,249,160) 300203137 4,391,429007
Total comprehensive incoms
Surplug for the year [ - | wﬂl_"'” - ” - 769,096,770
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 130,658, 401 1
769,096,770 - 130,668, 401 - 899,765,171
Micro-credit loan portfolio disbursed against grant
4,640,014 - . . 4.640,014
Transferred from general funds to )
loan loss reserve - (144,890,837) 144,880,837 - - *
Balance as at 30 June 2021 _Mﬂ% M 823 M ZS,IIFE'I 300,203,137 %ﬁt
Th anneaed nctes 1 10 46 fom an integral pan of these Bnancial w%}
I
Chiel Executive Officer iel Financid Officer Director
Page 4 of 40
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Cash flow from operating activities (Restated)
Surplus for the year 769,086,770 208,616,587
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation 6.1 158,161,557 146,291,447
Amortization 71 3,694,052 1,434,197
Liabilities written back (40,317 ,980) (568,077)
Markup on lease 28,079,805 20,066,081
Return on investments and bank deposits (633,592,069) (626,108,560)
Amortization of transaction costs of long term loans 93,682,564 86,228,011
Finance cost 1,787,049,754 2.531,500,077
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (6,039,091) (206,081)
Grant income (67,649,808) (79,129,085)
Bad debls recovered (807,828) (3.115,265)
Deferred loss on sale and lease back 924,408 2773224
Fair value gain on mutual fund (109,258) (48 863)
Fair value gain on investment property (5,646,850) .
Dividend income (3,575,882) (1,654,284)
Exchange lossigain 28,183,114 (3.389,329)
Pravision for loan loss 487,532,705 388,318,299
1,829,369,193 2,442 251,072
Surplus before working capital changes 2,598,465,963 2,651,867 659
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
(Increase) [ decrease in micro-credit loan portfolic (3,441,447,269) 670,636,737
(Increase) [ decrease in Kashf Murabaha (133,739,445) 3,896,349
Decrease / (increase) in accrued service charges 446,481,900 (4897 .451,810)
Increase in advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables {133,317,418) (51.633.028)
Increase in defarred grants 419,805,423 66,911,334
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 208,391,282 (49,318,513
{2,633,825,527) 143,041,071
Cash (used in) [ generated from ) operations (35,359,564) 2,794.908.730
Finance cost paid {1,981,569,284) (2,331.771.865)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (2,016,928,848) 463,136,865
Cash flow from inv i
Capital expenditure incurred (74,031,801) {93,159,884)
Additions in Right of use asset (56,574,039) .
Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 7,283,383 9,305,880
Long term loan 409,194 290.058
Long term deposit-nat 4,615,300 -
Return on investments and bank deposits 727,356,513 557,362,604
Investments 883,049,808 (813,584,382)
Net cash generated from [ (used in) investing activities 1,492,008,358 (330,785,724)
Cash flow from vities
Transaction costs paid for borrowings (118,083,917} {147 260,406)
Lease liabilities - net (31,010,031) (62.512,417)
Proceads received against financing 7,425,584,253 7,869,353 322
Donated Funds-Met 4,640,014 -
Repayments of financing (6,943,941,530) (4,277 995,817)
MNet cash generated from financing activities 337,188,789 3,381,484 682
Met (decrease) | increase in cash and cash eguivalents {187,731,701) 3504 835,823
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,111,038,513 2.606.202,650
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,923,306,812 5,111,038513
The annexed notes 1t ; part of these financial statements, Sry
Diragfor

]
ch lel&f Fidancidl Officer
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KASHF FOUNDATION

KASHF FOUNDATION

[ACOMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

21

)

23

24

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Kashi Foundation (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 February 2007 as a public company limited by guarantee.
not having & share capital and licensed as 8 non-profit organization under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017. The licensa
under seclion 42 of the Companies Act. 2017 s valid 3 Febryary 2022 In October 2016, the Company received license from
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), vaiid upta 18 October 2022, 1o carry out investiment finance services
as a non-banking finance company undar the Non Banking Finance Companies |Establishment and Reguiations) Rules. 2003
(NBFC Rules}

The principal activity of the Company is to provide cost effective micro-finance services lo poor households in order to enhance
their economic role and allow self-employed individuals the sustained opportunity of matching existing skills with financial
resources. The Company also provides non-financial services in the form of training through vocational Iraining centars both 1o
its borrowers and to its staff. Registered office of the Company is situated at 1-C, Shahrah Mazaria e Pakislan, Lahore. The
Company has 325 ( 2020 : 325 ) branches in Pakiglan, the list of which is not presented in these financial slalemenis lo
mamigin concision

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards appicable in Pakistan comprise of:

= International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International Accounling Standards Board
{IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

~ Accounting Standand for Not for Profit Organizations {Accounting Standard for NPOs) issued by the Institute of Chantered
Accountants of Pakistan as nolified under the Companies Act, 2017

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notfied Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations),

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are
notified under the Companies Acl 2017, and

Prowisions of and directives ssued under the Companias Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, NBFC Rules and NBFC Regulations difiar from the

IFRS or the Accounting Standard for NPOs. the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed

Standards, interpretation and amendments applicable to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the Company for
the year ended 30 June 2021, excepl as described betow.

New standards and amendment

The Company has adopled the following amendment

IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 - Amendment to IFRS 18

The adeption of the above amendment did not have any material effect on the financial statements

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through an SRO 800{11/2021 dated 22 June 2021 nolified that IFRS
8 shad be apphicable for the preparalion of financial statements of NBFCs for reporting year ending on or after 30 June 2022
Hewever, the Company has early adopted the standard during the year ended 30 June 2018,

Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The foliowing standards, amendments and Intarpretations with respact to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respeciive standard or migpretaton

-
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KASHF FOUNDATION

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on
Standard or interpretation after)

Iniaresi Rate Benchmark Refomn - Phase 2 - Amendments 1o IFRS 9. IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and 1 January 2021
IFRS 16

Refarence to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments o IFR3 3 1 January 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments 1o IAS 16 1 January 2022
Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfiling @ Contract = Amendments to 1AS 37 1 January 2022
::; I:;Sp:efﬁml-ﬁna Adoplion of International Financial Reponting Standards — Subsidiary as a firsl- 1 January 2022

AIP IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ tast for derecognition of financial habilites 1 January 2022

AP 1AS 41 Agriculiure - Taxation in fair value measurements 1 January 2022
Classification of Liabilities as Curent or Non-cutrent - Amendments to 1AS 1 1 January 2023
Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments 1o IAS & 1 January 2023
Disciosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to LAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 1 January 2023

Daferred Tax retated 1o Assets and Liabilitles arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments 1o IAS
12 1 January 2023

The Company expects that such improvements o the standards will not have any material impact on the Company’s financial
staterments in the period of initial application.

in addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements 1o various accounting standards and conceplual framewark
have also been issued by the |ASB.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yel to be notified by the SECP for the purpese of
apphcability in Pakistan

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on
Standard or Interpretation after)
IFRS5 1 First-tire Adaption of Imernational Financial Reporting 1 July 2009
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

The Company expects that such improvements 1o the standards and new standards will not have any material impact on the
Company's financial statemeants

Correction of a fundamental error as per International Accounting Standard (IAS B)

During the year, the management has recognzed nght of usa assels and commesponding lease liabilities related to micro-cradit
pranchas taken on rental basis by adjusting the cpening retained earings by Rs. Nil and surplus for year ended 30 June 2020

by Rs. 15562 836

Previously, the management was recognizing lease payments a3 rental expenses by electing the 'shon-wrlj and low-value
jeases’ exemption which was not in ling with the business plan of Kashi This has been adjusted retrospactively as per the
requirements of IAS-8 * Changes in accounting policies. estmates and fundamental errors”. The effect of correction of emors

on financial statements is summanzed below

{As previously
(Restated) reported})
30 June 2020 Adjustment 30 June 2020
Rupeaes Rupees Rupees

Statement of financial position
Property and Equipment - Right of use assel 186,751,131 176,418,859 10,331 242

il §,269.285
Lease kabilites 200,252,110 191.982.72%
Accumulated surplus 3,284 676,599 (15,562 838) 3,300 239.43& -2
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(As proviously
|Restated) reporied)
30 June 2020 Adjustment 10 June 2020

Statement of income and expenditure Rupees Rupees Rupees
Programme cost - Depreciation - night of use assels 48917436 49917436 y;
Finance cost - Mark-up on lease kabilities 20,066,061 17843718 2222343
Pragramme cosl - Offica rent 15.793.135 {52,198,31%) 67,991 458
Net decrease in surplus for the year 85.776.636 15.562 836 70.213.800
Statemant of changes in accumulated funds
Accumulated suplus 3.284,676.559 {15,562 836 3.300.239,435

Since the appiication of IFRS 16 was initally effective from 01 July 2019. opening accumulated surplus for the year ended 30
June 2020 = not affected. Accordingly, third statement of financial posilion is nol presented.

USE OF JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accountng standards requires management 1o make
judgments. estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounis of assets and Habiites,
income and expenses. The estimates and sssociated assumplions and judgments are based on histoncal experience and
various other factors that are beleved 1o be reasonable under the citcumstances, the result of which form the basis of making
the judgment about carrying valuss of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
dffar from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized
in e period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that percd, orin the pariod of revision and fulture penods
if ravision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various assumplions and estimates are significant o
Company's financial statemants or where judgmants were sxercised in application of accounting poficies are as follows

- Uselul life of depreciable assets (note 5.1)
- Useful life of intangible assets (nole 5.3)

< Provigion for boan losses (note 5.7.1)

= Right of use asset and tease kabilites (note 5.5)

Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting polcies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and nen-financial
assets and lisbilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. If
third party information, such as broker quoles, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence
obiainad independently or from the third parties o suppaort the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of IFRS,
inciuding the level in the fair value herarchy in which the valuations should be ciassified The significant items measured at fair
value include

Fair valie maasurements of cross curmancy swaps
Fair value measurements of invesiment property

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The financial statamants have been prepared under the hisiorical cost convention, excepl for

- Revaluaton of freehold land;

- Certain foreign currency ransiation adjustments,

- Faw value measurement of investment property; and

= Fair value measurement of certain shor term investment

Summary of significant accounting pelicies
The significant accounting policies adoptad in the preparation of these financial statemants ame sel oul below

Property and equipment

Operating fixed assels except 1ang, are stated a1 cost less accumulated depreciation and any dentified mpairment loss. Land is
stated at revalued amount Depreciation on all operating fixed assets is charged to income on siraight line method so as 1o write
off the histarical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life al the rates referfed to in note § 1o the financial statements

Depreciation on addiions 1o operatng fixed assets s charged from the month in which the assel is acquired or capitalized
while no depreciation s charged for the month in which the asset is dsposad uf;fq
‘ &
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The Company assesses al each reporting date whather there I8 any indication that fived assets may be mpaired. If such
indication exists, the carmying amounts of such assets are raviewed (0 assess wnether they are recorded in excess of ther
recoverable amounts. VWhere Carrying values exceed the respeclive recoverable amounts, assets are wrilten down 1o their
recovesable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of income and expenditure currenily. The
recovarable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to soll and value in use Where an impairment loss 15
recognized, the degraciation charge s adjusted in the future perods to aliocate the assels revised carmying amount over its
estimated useful life

Subsequent costs ame included in the assel's camyng amounl of recognized Bs & separate assel, as appropnate, only when it is
probabie thal future economic benefils associated with the ftems will low lo the Company and the cosl of the ilem can be
measured refiably. All other repair and maintenance cosis are charged to income during the period in which they ane incurred.

An lem of propery and equipment is derecognized upoen disposal or when no future economic banefits are expaectad from its
use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on derecognibon of the asset (calculated as fhe diffarence between the nel disposal
proceeds and carmymg amount of the asset) is included in the income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any denbfied accumulaled impairment loss. These are
amodized using the straight line method al ihe rate of 20% to 33.33%. Amorization on additions is charged from the month in
which an intangible asset is acquired, while no amortizahon is charged for the month in which intangible asset is disposed off.

Subsequen! expenditure an intangible assels is capilalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which il relates. All other expenditures are charged o income 35 and when incurred

Investmeant properties

Investment properties afe properties held edher (o eam rental income of for capital appraciation or for both. Investment
properties are measured using far value model with any change therein recognized in statement of income of expenditure. The
Company has valued investment proparias using exlemal valuator al reporting date. WWhen the use of properies changes such
that it is transferred to property and equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting, simitarly when the property recorded as property and equipment is transferred to investiment propeny, il is recorded
al far value determined al reclassification date and surplus on such property at that tme s credited 1o surplus on revaluation
amaunt and deficit is charged to statement of income or expanditure.

Financial instruments

A fingncial instrument is any contract thal gives riae to 8 financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity nstrument
of angther antity

Financial assets

All recogrized finencial assels are measured iniGially at fair value and subsequently in their entinety at either amortized cost o
farr value. depanding on the classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets
2)  Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

Dbt instruments that meat the following condiions are measured subsaquently at amortized cost

The financial asset is hald within &8 business modal whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contraciual werms of the financial asset give rise on specified cates 10 cash flows that are solaly payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding

Amortized cost and effective inferes! method

The amortized cost of 8 financial assel is the amount at which the linancial assel is measured al initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective intarest method of any difference batween that initial
amounl and the maturity amgunt, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross cammying amounl of 3 financial assel is the
amortized cost of a financial asse! belore adjusting for any loss allowance.

The effective interest mathod s a methed of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant peried. Interes! income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate lo the gross carrying
amounl of a financial assel

Az al reporting date, the Company cares cash and cash equivalents, micro-credil loan portfolio, mvestments, deposits and
advances al amertized mﬂqﬁ
} &
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b) Financial Instruments measured at fair value and hedge accounting

Tre Company holds cerivative financial instrumenis to hedge is foreign cumrency and inberest rate risk exposures. The
Company designates these derivatives as hadging instruments o hadge the variability in cash flows associated with foraign
currency debl altributable to changes in foreign currency rates and foresgn currency denominated inleres! rates.

These financial instruments, upon meeting specified condilions, are measured subsequently a1 fair value through other
comprahensne income (FVTOCH,

¢}  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On Initlal recognition, the Company may make an irmevocable election (on an instrument-by-inslrumenl! basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI

As al reparting date, the Company does nol possess any financial assets classified as at FVTOCL

d) Financial assets measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

By default. all other financial assets are measured subsequantly at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
As at reporting date the Company carries mutual funds classified as at FYTPL

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes allowance for mpairment of loan portfalio at higher of. a) applicable regulatory requiremants. b) loss
allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) calkculated as per IFRS 9 requirements, and c) minimum inlernal provisioning
thresholds. The amount of impairment allowances there agains! ks updated at each reporting date.

The Company determines ECL for loan portfolio using general spproach. The expected credit losses on loan portfolio assels
are determined using probabilistic estimation of fulure expected cash Nows. adusted for faclors that are specific (& the loan
portfolios and an assessment of both the current a3 well a5 the forecas! direction of conditions at the reporting date

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible defaull avents over the expected life of a
financial instrument In contrast, 12:month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected 1o result from default
evenls on a financial iInstrumen (hat are possibie within 12 months after the reporting date

Measurement of the expecied credi! loss allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets s an area that requires the use of complex medels and significant
assumpbions about lulure economic conditions and credil behavior (e.g., the kelihood of customers defauling and the resulting
losses)

A number of significant judgments are also required in measuring ECL. such as:

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.
- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk

- Choosing appropriate models and assumplions for the messurement of ECL. and
- Eslablishing the number and refative weightings of forward-logking scenanos

Write-off policy

The Company wnites off loan assets that are pas! due 180 days from the maturity date. Financial assets written off may still be
subject lo enforcement activities undar the Company's recovery procadures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate
Any recovenes made agains! linancial assets written-off are recognized in statement of income or expenditure.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asse! and subslantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assel 1o another entity, If the
Company neiher transfers nor retaing substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred assel. the Company recognizes its relained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. I the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a ransferred financial assel, the Company
continues fo recognize the financial assel and also recognizes a collalerakzed borowing lor the proceeds received.

On deracognibon of a financial assel measured al amortized cosl, the difference between the assels carrying amount and the
sum of {ne consideration recenved and recenvabie is recognized in statement of ncome o Enpeur‘dll.ureiﬂ
3=
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Investment in associates

Investments in associales are initially recognized at cost Al subsequent reporting dales, the recoverable amounls are
estimated to delermine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly
impainent losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse. Lhe carrying amounts of the

invesiments are Increasad to the revisad recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal
of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income or expenditure.

f ha

In Muraoaha ransactions, the Company advances lunds 1o the person known as agent &l that time. Agent purchases the goods
on behalf of the Company, Agent takes the possession of goods and offers to purchase the goods from the company which
when accepted = binding on both partes. The customer agrees to pay to the Company, the cost of godds plus profit agreed by
the partcipants on a credit terms of twelve equal monthly instaliments

The criferia mentioned in note 5.7 & followed for recording of provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carned i the statement of fmancial positon al cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and bank balances In the stalement of financial pasition, finances under
mark-up arrangements sre shown separately

Financial liabilities
Subseguent measurement of financial liabilities

contingant consideration of an acquirer in 8 busingss combination
held-for-trading, or
designaled as al FVTPL are measured subsequently al amartized cost using Ihe effective interast methed.

Thne effective interest method is a methed of calculating the amortized cost of a financial kabiity and of allocating interast
expense over the relevant penod. The effective mterest rate is the rate thal exacily discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral pan of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the fingncial liability, or (where appropriste} a shorter pencd. lo the
amortized cost of a financial liability,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial habiities when, and only when, the Company's obligations ara discharged, cancelled of
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the firancial ability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognized in staiement of income or expendilure.

wi financial i [+]

Loans and borrowings are inialy recorded at the proceeds received. Transaclion costs directly attnbutable to obtaining the
loans and borrowings are deducled in determining the proceeds received on initig! recopnition In subsequent penods,
borrowings are slated al amortized cost using effective yield method. Finance charges are accounted for on an accrual basis
and are mcluded in creditors and accruals 1o the extent of the amount remaining unpaid. Arrangement fees and olher
transaction costs are aiso amortized over the term of 'oan using effective yield method

etti n ial

A financial asset and a financial lisbilty is offsel and the net amount is reported in the slatement of financial position, if the
Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the fransaction and also inlends either to settie on a nel basis or o realize the
asset and settie the hability simulansously

Hedge Accounting

The Company holds derivalive financial nstruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk expasures. These
derivatives are inially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, dervatives are measured at fair value, and
changes tharein are genarally recognized in statemaent of income of expenditure

The Company designates these derivatives as hedging instrumenis to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with foreign
currency denominated loans

Al inception of designated hedging refationships. the Company documentis the risk managemen! chjectve and sirategy for
undertaking Ihe hedge The Company also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
imstrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expecled to oifset each
othar

Y-
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When a denvalive is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair vaiue of the
derivative is recognized in OCl and accumulated in the hedging reserve. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative that is recognized in OCI is bmited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged ilem, determined on a present
value basis, from inception of the hedge, Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized
mmediately in statement of ncome or expenditure.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is lerminated or is
exercised, ihen hedge accounting fs discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting for cash flow hedges is discontinued,
e amount that has been accumulated in the hedging reserve remains in equity until it is reclassified to statement of income or
expenditure in the same period of petiods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect statement of incoma or expenciture

If the hedged fulure cash fiows are no longer expected Lo occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in the hedging
reserve and the cost of hedging reserve are immediately reclassified to statermant of income of expenditure

Leases

The Company assesses al contract nceplion whathat a contract is, or confaing, a kease [e If the conlract corveys the nght o
control the use of an identified assel for a perod of bme in exchange for consideration

Company as lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measutemen! approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets The Company recognizes lease fiabitties to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
rghl to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes nghi-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date the underlying asset s
availlabla for use). Right-ol-use assels are measured al cosl. less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjustad for any remeasurement of lease liabdites. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease labilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-ol-use essels are depreciated on a straight-fine basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated usaful lves of the assals

Lease liabilities - rented premises

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate 8l Ihe lease
commencement date because tha interest rate mplicit in the lease is nol readily determinable. Afier the commencament date,
the amcunt of lease liabilites is increased to reflect the accration of interest and reduced for the lease payments mada. In
addtien, the carrying amount of lease liabilities 15 remeasured If there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g.. changes o fulure paymen:s resuiting from a change in an index or rate used 1o determine such leasa
paymenis) or @ change in the assessment of an oplion to purchase the underlying asset

Trade and other payables

Liabilites for trade and other amounts payable are carfied at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future
for goods and services received, whelher or nol biied 1o the Company

Provisions
Provigions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past events, il is
probable that an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligation and a reliable

estimate of (ne amoun! can be made Provisions are reviewad at each raporting date and adjusted to reflect the current bast
eslimale

Provision for loan losses

The NBFC Rules and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Motified Entities Regulations. 2008 {the NBFC and NE
Regulations) describe the Dasis for recording of provisions for doubiful debls. Accordingly, specific and general provisions have
been determined considering the prescribed requirements snd managament estimates.

Specific provision
Specific provision is created against balances which are known o have financial issues based on their repayments baing

overdue for certain days. It is created when & balance remains unpaid for following days:
3 -
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Qverdue Range Percentage of Specific Provision
30-89 Days 25%
90-179 Days 50%
180 Days or more 100%

Additonal provision is also made f recovery of a specic balance is considered doubtful by the management. Loan losses
(write-0ifs) are charged against the allowance for loan losses when managemen believes thal the principal is uniikely lo be
racoversd

General provision

Provision for ioan iosses s recorded on maninly basis to mantain the overall provision at adequate levels for doubtful loans that
@re outstanding but yet not collected. For this purpose additional provision is recognized at 1% of the outstanding micro-credi
loan portiolo

Accordingly the specific and general provisions recognized during the year are charged to the statement of income and
expendiure

The Company recognizes pravision for doubtful lnans at higher of applicable reguiatory requirements, Expected Credd Losses
and internal provisioning threshold

Loan loss reserve
General regerve up 10 5% of the outstanding micro-credit loan portiolio is created that s recognized in statement of changes in
sccumulated funds.

Employee retirement benefits - defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved defined contribution provident fund for all permanent employees Equal monthly
contributions are mace by the Company and Ine empioyees 1o the fund a1 the rate of 10% of basic salary per month,

Recognition of grants and donations

Grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the relevant conditions. if any. and
thier grant will be received.

Grants refated 10 assets other than biclogical assets, are minally recognized at far value in sialement of financial position, as
deferred income, that is amontized over the uselul life of the assel

Grants reiated 10 projact expenses are recognized as revenue In the statement of income or expendiure on a sysiemalic basis
in the samie peneds in which the expenses are incurred, on a net basis L.e. offset the grant against the related expenditure.

Grants where no condibons are associated by the donor with s utilizalion are recognized as incoma in the period in which it is
recanad

Taxation

The Company is entitied 1o one hundred percent tax credit of the income lax payable, including minimum and final taxes
payable under section 100(C) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, Therefore. no provision of income tax has been accounted
for in these financial statements

Revenue recognition

Mark-up on micro-credit loans are recognized using effective yield method at prevailing mark-up rates for lean products. Profit
oa Mursbahe s recognized on an accrual basis Profit on Murasbaha wansactions for the perod is accounted for on the
culmination of Murabaha transactions. The portion of profit not due is deferred and treated as Bal Muajjal and profit on Bai
Muajial 15 recognized on accrual basis

Return on bank deposits is recognized when earned Documentation and administration fee collected from micro-credit koan
cuslomars is recognized on recaint basis Dividend is recognized as income when right o receive dividend is established

Forelgn currencies
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency

All monetary assats and liabilites in foreign currencies are transiated inio Pak Rupees al exchange rales prevaling &l the
repartng date except for the loans referred to in note 23. Transactions in forewgn currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at
the axchange rate prevading at the date of ransaction Al non-monetary ilems are iranslated into Pak Rupees al exchange
rates prevailing on the date of ransaction or on the date when fair values are datermined

Fareign exchange gans and Josses on these transiations are recognized in the statement of mcome or expenditure.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is disciosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existance will

be confirmed anly by the occurrence or noa-oocuerrance, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the Company, or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation thal arises from past events, bul it is not probable

that an outfiow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required (o setfle the obligalion, or the amount of the

obligation cannol be measured with sufficient ralmbihty'-:_
1+
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Aligcation of depreciation

Program cos
Managament and administrative expenses
Grart expenses

Note

3
3
34

107,602,181

46,788,557

3.770,808
A6,

104,735,206
43 087,121

1469030
291 44

Had here been no revalustion, the canmying vaius of freehold land woald Rave amoumed 1o fs. 93 5 millon (2020 B3 836 milion) The pkd sies is 527 kenal
and sduited at the 1-C. Main Nazara Pakiswmn. Opposite Expo Centre, Mouze Niaz Baig. Lahore

mew-umnlm-mﬂuq-dmhumwmﬂg.aﬁzlnﬁm-mmﬂmmﬂm

The ¢o41 of the assets as &t 30 June 2071 inclode hily deprecuated assets amounting 1o Rs. 08,40 million (2020. Rs. 79.3 milion) which are stll in use of the

Company
Mate _on 2020
INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rupess Rupees
Foftware ard boerses T 7,079,140 2408778
Capitat work in progress 1.2 10,873,728 21,023 376
J?&lﬂ 3 450 152
Software and licenses
021
Cost Accumulated amortization / impairment Mot book
As at Additions As al As at Amortization As ot value as ot 30 fate
1 July 2020 (deletions) 30 June 2031 1 July 2020 for the year 30 June 2021 June 2021 %
Rupees
Licenses 1,978,609 4,861,040 8B40 648 2845124 559,856 3,204 580 56315860 20
Soltware 5615850 23437376 30,083 235 5,483 558 3,134 168 8617, 764 21415471 A13.3%
M- 28,208,416 JE B8] 884 g 128 832 __M 'I'Illi;ﬂl EE‘.I' 1.14&
2020
Cost Accumulated smortzaten | IMpairment Nel boo# value
As at Agdrions! As a3l As at AT BN As @t as &t 30 Hate
1 July 2019 (delslons) 30 June 2020 1 by 2016 for i your 20 June 2020 June 2020 -
" Hupaes
Licenses 3,670,600 . 3,975,608 2,153,724 491 400 2645124 1,334 485 0%
Softwire 6,121,769 454 100 6615859 4 540 771 B4 797 £,483 858 1,132 291 331.37%
10,104,358 494,100 10,555 468 6694 4 1434 157 8,128 632 AE5, TTH
Amantization changed for the year has been aliacalod 1o management and adewisiiabye expenses.
During the year, he ensty deveioped and capitaized the Mivx as repiacemant 1o the 0an process module MWE
Mote 2021 2020
Capital work in progross Rupaes Hupias
Software
As at Y Jidy 21,022,376 11,484 000
Additons 12,787,728 536376
Transfer | capahzed {22,837,378) .
A at 30 June 10&?“ 41,023 376
e e ———— LT
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Opening balance $2,602,900 &2 503 900
Het gain Inom fair vakse maasuiemen 5,646,850 -
51 E.?ﬁ E 503,900

The Company's investment preperiss consiat of Feahold land and bulding on freehosd and of 2006 kanal stusted al 15 Abak Biock. New Ganden Town,
Lahore. which have bean wased to thind pany in 2017 As gt 30 June 2021 ang 2020 e far values of he propertes ane based on valuations poformad By
Tristar faternational Consutant (Prvate] Limied. an sccredibed ingependent vaiue: Tha vaiuer s a soeciakst in valumg these types of investment propertss

Hote 201 2030
Rupses Rupaes
Rertal income denved from svestment propeios =" ] 1&1% 13,035 330

T3
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Hote 2021 2020
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Rupees Rupees
IrvEsiment in asscsiate 2.1 . .
investment i Term Finance Certficates 8.2 180.515.000 0
180,515,000
Il I g3 ELW '. - ate ALLLANES
@00.000 (2020 BOD,000) tully paid shaves of Rs 104 each &1 cosl,
equity held 30 2% (20200 30 2%) 63,000,000 63.000.000
Value of investmenl based on nel assels as shown in The
unaudited fmancal stalemenis As a1 30 June 2021 (2020
unpxhbed)
Accumulaled share of ioss of assocale
nases o0 unsudied fnancial stalemeants (£3,000.0000 (€3, 000.000)
Summary of financial information of the
associate is as follows: 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 20189
Rupees Rupees
Unaudited Avadad
Tokal assels 13,216 58.578.177
Total labitios 370,746,687 m}ﬁnﬁ
Logs loe the year (8,404 927) (41.203.711)

Share of loss amounting to Rs 96 B54 mulkon (2020: Rs. 131 42 milion) has been restricted 1o cost of investment in associate. The principal
setivily of the Kashf Helging (Privale) Limited s making invesiment in iis associasted underiaking. The registered office of the Company is
sitvated al 1-C. Shahrah Mazarea-g-Paksian, Lanooe Pakisian

20231 2020
Rupees Rupees
Termn Firance Certficates 180,515,000

This represents 1em finance camificates purchased from Bank Alfatah Limited an 15 January 2021 The instrument cames markup of 8 03%
P annum with matueity of five WEATE

Note 2021 2020
LONG TERM LOANS Rupeas Rupees
Related party - unsecurad
Lowen to Hashl Holging (Private) Limited 10.1 220,239,935 238.239.935
Less Accumulaled mparment 10,2 {220,233,935) (238,239 535)
L 10 Snployess - Unsecured 10.3 217,730 £26.0924

217,730 Gib¥2a

Tris represents a loan given under an agreemen lo Kashl Hoiding (Privatel Limited (KHL), an assosialed underaking. The loan along wilh
Made-up was recanable i 20 equal guanddy instaliments slaning rom Seplembed 2013 In 2013, the Company hag rescheduled this. Ioan
The foan siong with mark-up was recaivable in wo instaliments due on 31 December 2015 and 31 Dacamber 2015 amounting 1o Re 180 52
millgn and Rs 301.98 milkon respectvely 1n 2015, the Company camed oul second rescheduling of this loan througn a resalulion In Board
of Direclors’ mesting dated 20 June 2015 The loan along with mark-up was receivable in two instaliments due on 31 December 2015 and
31 Decemeer 2020 amountng to Rs. 130 mion and Rs. 378,72 milion respectively Tha Board of Directors decided in the board meeting
heid on 20 Jangary 2018 ja fully smpan [h loan as rg recovery nad been receved rm past § years

Hash! Foundation has rescheduled this ioan theough & Ihrd addendum dated 1 July 2019, The loan is pavable in 17 annual instaiments
staring from year 2020 The rescheduled loan cames mark-up al ihe rale of 1 year KIBOR plus 2% per annum. RS 18 millon was received
g he year frarm KHL as mentioned i cote 38 Total Re 41 malbor has bean recowed from KHL s far

Matg 2021 2020
Wavemen! m azcumualpd impaismeant Rupoes Rupees
As at 1 July 238,239,938 238239935
Less. Revaersal duting the year on recoviery of loan 33 {18,000,000) -
A5 31 30 Juna 221].!3!153‘-5 238.239 935
These aw inleres! es bans

Nole 2021 2020
LONG TERM MICRO.CREDIT LOAN PORTFOLIO -UNSECURED Rupees Rupees
Kashf School Sarmaya 111 48,274 490 155 773,065
Kasnl Muwmishe Karza 1.2 394,657,117 HI43060

442,931,607 509,212 665

L
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Hote 2021 2020
Due within one year: Rupees ]
Kashf School Sarmaya Karza u&,ﬁ&.HTl" (127.648.278)
Kash! Muwaishi Karza {383,985,750) (334 707,196)
{440,155,690) (482 355 474)
Less: Provision for doubttul loans 14.7 (2,558.955) (11113,876)
216,962 35743 113

Kasht School Sarmaya Karza represent micro-credit loans for educational activilies with ioan amount Fanging from Rs 80,000 1o Rs 500.000
each. The guistanding balance is repayable along with service charges and life insuwrance over a period of upto twenly four months,
payable in equal monthly installments, The effective yie'd on these loans ranges from 36.03% to 37 06% (2020:38 83% 1o 39.23% ) per
annum

Kashf Muwaishi Karza represents micro-Credil lpans provided 1o such clients who want 10 run their dairy business at small scale with an
inaividual koan amount of Rs. 30,000 fo Rs. 150,000. The oulstanding balance is payable over a period upto eighteen manths, payable in
equal monthly instaliments. The efective yield on this loan ranges from 24% lo 36.57% (2020.35.47% to 35 72% ) par annum,

Impact of dacounting of long lerm micro-credit foan is consdened smmaterial
FINANCIAL ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) USED FOR HEDGING

The Company enters inta denwative transactons with scheduled banks in Pakistan to hedge #s foreign currency exposures associated with
foteign currency loans. In general, the Company enlers into bespoke CIDSS currency swap agreements for each incividual foreign curmency
lean The foreign currency gans hedged by the Company are given in nate 23.1.2,

Tna Company measures the kaw value of hedging instruments. which are non-exchange-raded, based on frice quates oblsned from the

counterparbes/broker dealers. The counlerparty price quotes reflect the amounts that the Company axpects to receive of pay 1o lemminale
fhe confract at the repaning date. laking nte sccounl Ihe current markel conditions (rate parily. volatilty, yield curve).

Derlvative
Contracts Falr Values Motional Amounis
Numbar Rupees uso
30 June 2021
MCH Bank Limiled 4 263674078 B 425357
Faysal Bank Limiled 1 (8.957.360) 1,500,000
Standard Charlered Band Limibed 5 [76.474 893) 23,500,837
Habib Bank Limited 4 {25873 874) 27 024 000
154 367 951 61.351,103
Less. Currend porbon {51.192.473) {21,548 DaB)
100.255.478 39,802,155
30 June 2020
MCE Bank Limited 10 1,166,913 742 27,108 351
Faysal Bank Limited 1 18,273 064 3.000,.000
Standard Chanered Bank Limilag 3 39,220 027 18 645 596
Habib Bank Limited 1 125,465 234 5,983,830
1,349 872 087 58,755,877
Less: Currend portion {2009.083.642) [20.637.401)
540,788 445 38,118,475

The hedge ineffectivenass can ansc from

-Dhfferences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged ilems and the hadging instruments

-Different indexes (and accordingly Different curves) linked 1o the hecged risk of tha hedged items and hedging instruments
-The counlerpartes’ credit fisk differently impacting the fair value movemants of the hedging instruments

and hedged items

-Changes 1o (he forecasted amount of cash flows of hedged fems and hedging nstruments

Srce the hedge i effective dunng the year. therefore ai the gan on hedging fransaction has been recognized n other comprehensive
ncome

2021 2020
LONG TERM DEPOSITS Rupees Rupseas
Securily agains! asset . 4 515,300
Security deposit against ebeciricily connection 463,160 463 380
463,360 4 078 &0

(4}
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14 MICRO-CREDIT LOAN PORTFOLID - UNSECURED 2 2020
R Rupees
Kashf Karobar Karza 14.1 12,582,621,733 11,724 254 621
Kashf Bahal Karza 14.2 1.459, 168,767 -
Kashf Knudmukhlar Sarmaya 14.3 - 13.870.630
Kashi Easy Loan 14.4 1.215.441,620 BT0.006.473
Kashf Sahulal Karza 14.5 22,442,013 13,280 658
Kashf Zaral Karza 146 - 450 515
15,281,874,152 12,821 960,800
ACciued service charges 180,960,247 BT 442 247
Currenl porlicon of kang lerm micro credil joan poriolio " 440,156,690 462,355 474
15.912,990,190 13.721.758,620
Less: Accrued service charges disclosed separalely in stalement
of financal positon 16 [180,960,347) {BIT7 442 247)
Less: Provision for doublful lbans 147 (478,345.869) {480.371.888)
Less: Modification loss on financial assets n (24,538,344) (375,447 618)
15.218,745.610 12,228 406 BE7

141 Kashl Karobal Karzs repiesents micro-credil loans for proguctivelincome generating activilies. The initial loan amount is Rs. 30,000 and
fhe maximum lgan amount cannot excesd Rs. 150,000 each. The oulsianding balance is repayable along wilh service charges and Kash!
Sehaimand Jndagl Bema over a period of twelve monfhs in equal monthly instalments, The effective yield on these loans is 35.91%
(2020; 35.91%) per annum

14,2 FRasnt Bahal Karza represents micro-creditl [0ans 1o clienis whose businBsses werg impactsd by multiple lockdowns due (o Covid outbreak
duning the last year It was launched in December 2020 with sunset clausa till Seplember 2021 The basic purpose of ihe loan is to provics
liquidity 10 those clants whose businesses were iilguid and injection of kquidity help them 10 révive their business and Ivelinood, The iDan
ranges from Re 20,000 1o Re 150000 The outstanding balance iz repayadle along with service charges and Kashf Sehatmand Zindag
Bama over a peood of twehve months n equal moniny nstaimeants. The eflective yield on thesa loans is 35.91% per annum

13 Kashl Khudmuokiiar Sarmaya mpresent micro-credil loans for those households wha are deprived ol opportunities 10 eam income wath loan
amount of Re 20,000 each. The culstanding balance was payabla over 2 panod of twalve monthe in equal monthly ingtalimenis. Thig facility
was ineres! free and is given to poor people who cannat afford 1o begin a new business. This facilty is no longer available as A was dongr
based project of five years

fe4  Hashf Easy Loan represents micro-credit loans provided 1o such clients who want to run thedr business at smail scale or want to futfil
personal financial noeds al easy erms with an minmen ameunt of Re. 20,0200 and maximem amount is R$.25.000 The outstanding
balance s payable over a period of twalve months in equal monthly instaliments. The efféctve yield on this loan B 356.74 % (20200 36 74%)
BT BN

4.8 Kashf Sahulal Karza represents micro-credil loans provided to such chents who have already obtained Kash! Karobar Karea for their
demeshic use with a fixed amount of Re. 5.000 to Rs.7.000. The cuistanding balance is payable over a perod of six moanths in equal
monthly instalimenis The effective yield on this loan s 36 78% (2020: 36, T4%).

1468 Kashf Zaral Karza represents micro-credil loans provided to chents for crop production with amounts rangeng from Rs 50.000 fo Rs
100,000 The outstanding balance is payable oved a pericd of three, six o twelve months, as applicable in equal monlhly installments The
effgctive yhald on this loan is 35% (202034 40%)

54|

Hote 2021 2020
WY Provision for doubtful loans Rupees Rupeas
Adal T Juby 491,485,767 171,580,869
Charge for the year 476,503,118 320,575,275
966,988,885 501,156 144
Wintten olf agains! provision (4886,084,041) (9.870,37T)
Ax al 30 June 14.7.1 450,904,844 451,485,767

Wwra

Brean up of provision for doubthsl I0ans among NON-Curfant Snd Curfent pOMmon is as fofows:

Non-cisrent portion 2 558,955 11,113,878
Currant portion 478,345.889 480,371,888
480,804,844 451,485,767

The Company recognizes provision for doubthul loans at higher of applicable reguialory requirements, Expected Credil Losses and mtérnal

provisioning thresholg

2021 2020
Rupees Rupaes
Provision under the policy of the Company
-General 180,451,651 128.545.234
-Specific 218,646,551 144204 280
165,098,204 272 345 514
Provision under Expocted Crodlt Losses as per IFRS 9 480,504,844 481,320,632
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Provision under NBFC Regulations
“Genaral
-Specific

Number of loans
Consinered good

Consdensd doubtfil
Less: Loans writhen off

Aping analysis of loan portfolio - {long term and short ferm)
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KASHF FOUNDATION

204 2020

Rupees Rupses
78,338,485 130.213 839
57,108,819 108, 788 658
135,847,324 240 003 487
281 340 352
55,749 139.738
102 {529)
33,647 138209
535938 479.561

The Company's main indicator of tpan deknguenty i the Portolo-A-Risk ratio Loans are segregated indo classes depending on the
numbser of days (hey are overdue. For each class of loan ihe gutsianding prncipal balance of such ioan & daided by the prncipal balance

o the gross lpan portfolo for loan I0ss percentage

Loans are considerad at risk if any payment has fallen due and remained unpaid for more than 1 day. The Company does nod convert mark-

ufr ot lale payment into poncipat

Mol due yet

1-23 days

30-85 days

0179 days

More than 180 days

Portiolio by segment
M ise

Agrcidiure and livestock
Services

Trading

Manutacturing

General loan

Domestic

Schogt

Food production and services
Garmants and handhcrafis
Transport

KASHF MURABAHA PORTFOLIO

Kashl Mutahaha recelvabie
Legs. Uneamed Murabaha income

Less Provision for doubiful Murabaha

20 2020 20 2020
Percentage Percentage Rupees Rupees

95.54% T 10% 15,023,090, 589 9,336,078 601
0.68% 268T% 107,304,511 3528 446 431
2.45% 1 08% 385,271,035 141,619 19
1.10% 0.25% 173,621,662 32,450,715
0.23% 0 0% 35,517,963 92 569 624
100%: 100% 15.% 13,131,173.6658
4,238,273.8T2 3.713.469.514

2,697,232,372 2640.818.718

ZAT1535.137 2,104,566, 438

572,880,386 598,630,340

9.986.921,568 9.058. 485011

1.241,302,290 BB1.944 627

48,379,208 156,893,188

TT9.801.978 371272947

3.660.400.619 2662 521004

. 51,788

§,737.684,192 4.072 688554

15,724,805, 760 13,131.173.565

661,635,276 484127 191

{111,515.286) 4. 480.556)

15.4 550,019,580 419 546 B35

152 {10.578,032) 113,845 122}

539,440,958 405,701,513

Mursbaha faciiy was milreduced in 2014 1o provide financing facifity under lslamic (Sharyah) principles. It represents the culstanding
belance of cost of goods soi0 under Murabaha sgresment Faciity ranges between Rs 20000 to Rs 120.000 each Tha
balance is repayable along with prafd on Murgbaha over a period of twelve months. Profit is aliocated a1 the rate of 2008% (2020 20.8%%) on

terma of Murabaha agreemant.

Provision for doubtful Murabaha

As at 1 Jidy
Charge for the year

Wiritten off agains! provisaon
A al 30 Juner

Note 2021 2020
Rupoes Rupees

13,945,122 5218209

11,158,507 #.851.562

25.103,629 14189771
(14,524,597} (224 649}

1521 10,579,032 13.845.122
"

The Company recognizes proviskn kar doublhul loans al higher of applicable reguiatory requirements, Expected Credit Losses and injemnal

PrOnSIonIng (hres okl

L
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Pravislon under the policy of the Company
etial
Spocific

HASHF FOUNRATION

Provision under Expoected Credit Losses as par IFRS

Prevision under NBFC and NE Regulations
General
-Specific

Number of Murabaha's
Congidared good
Congderad doubtiul
Less Clesty written off

Aging analysis of Murabaha partfalia

Note 0 2020
Rupges Rupees
5,395,185 41732284
4,085,818 1,044 835
3,494,014 7177 185
10,678,032 13,846 122
————

T4 4,176,867
1,187,887 2059032
3,941 898 8235 765
18.148 122282

1.386 185

[ETE {14)

718 3.837

18 887 16,158

The Compary's main indizalor of Myrabaha losn delinquency /s the Portfolio-A-Risk rabio, Loans are segregated inlo classes depending on
Ihe number of days Ihey we overdus For each class of loan, the oulstandemg prncipal balance of such lpan s divided by Ihe principal
batance of the gross loan poriolio for loan |oss percentage.

Lo @le consiierad al sk il any payment has falen gue ang remained unpasd for more than 1 day. The Company does not conver

pervice charges on ke paymnent into principal

ot due yel

129 diys

30-80 days

90-17¢ days

More than 180 days

Murabaha porifolio by segment
Micro enterprise

Agncufiure Bnd Bvestock
Services

Trade
Marytaciuning

Geoneral loan

Food production and services
Garments and handcrafls

Transport

Fage 20 of 4D

204 2020 W02 _2oe0
Porcanlage Percentage Rupess Rupess
97.69% TH.3% 537,330,186 322192 453
0.40% 21.55% 2,189,346 $0.435.008
1.16% 0 95% 6,368,328 1999062
0.59% 2.18% 3,250,826 T2 1 H
0.16% 0.40% £81.324 1.671.076
100% 100% 550,019,950 419,646,638
20 2020
Rupees Rupsssg
109,431,699 87, 327,083
106,726,450 107,446 413
249,000,332 168,139 484
12,634 894 10, 68 432
477,783,436 ITa681 357
28,313,843 11,424,734
43522711 34,523 8aa
. 16,655
72,235,554 45905 243
550,015,950 410,646,635
Gy
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KASHF FOUNDATION

Note 2021 2020
ACCRUED SERVICE CHARGES Rupees Rupees
Agcrued service charges 192,190,368 B867.232.519
Less Provision for doubtiul gebi {1,230,018) (29,720.272)
160,960,347 BAT 442 247
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investmants designated at FVTPL
Faysal Income and Growth Fund {132,656 units (2020 174,506 units)) 14,170,044 13,380,502
NBP Money Market Fund (5.950,107 uts{ 2020.1,043 498 units]) 62,722,458 10,312,370
76,892,502 23702872
[nvestments at Amortized Cost
Term ceposil cerificates =
Local currangy 700,000,000 2.277.352.02
Foreign currency 186,139,609 2
17.1 1,086,139,609 2277382001
Term Finance certificates 17.2 0,000,000 +
1,136,138,609 2277 Y5200

1,213,032,111 2301.091,693

These lerm deposits carmy mark-up ranging from 3 25% to 9% (2020 3 % 10 16 %) per annum The term deposil cerficates with JS Bank
and Silk Bank Limited aggregating to Rs 350 million with the malurity of one year have been pledged as securily against running

financing facility availed from commarcial banks.

These term finange centificates cary markup of 8.60% per annum having matunty date of 31 December 2021

Haote Firyl 2020

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND Rupees Rupees

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advance 1o employees agains! expensas 431,520 150,760
Advances lo agenis against Murabaha 7,510,000 12,850,000
Short term deposits 670,500 462 500
Prapayments 16,178,500 12,352,016
Accrued refurn on nvesiments and bank deposis 55,124 487 148,888,931
Uneamed Murabsaha income 111,515,286 G4 480,556
Advance lax recoverable 343,187,382 225,205,960
Deterred loss on sale and lease back of vehickes . 824,099
Diocumentalion fee receivable 362,269 25522
Advances (0 suppliers 5,931,902 28281717
Recaivablas from donors - 4072841
Insurance ciaims receivables 21,293,889 33965019
Commission receivable 16,924,275 15,466,078
Ciher receivables 181 25,757,247 19,097,393

—_So4sET2sy 66258662

Chber recervebalke includes

Takalul confribution
Employes feld discrepancies
CMS charges

Training foe- receivable
Insurance Premium
Receivable from third parties

Page 21 ol 40

8,662,774 3,063,243
2,889,452 3477970

4,529 4,529

. 1,000

7.628,405 11,311,234
6,572,087 1239317

S TR Y. 18
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KASHF FOUNDATION

Note 2021 2020
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 5,708,696 26.200.081
Balance &t banks:
In current accounts - local currency 64,916,191 208,257,085
In saving accounts - local currency 5,402,241,777 5,755,180,6609
- foreign currency 450,440,148 31,400.688
19.1 5.852,681,925 5,786,581,357
5,923,306 812 - 6,111,038,513

Cash with banks in saving accounts cary mark-up at rates ranging from 5 % to B8.5% (2020: 7% to 14%) per annum

DONATED FUNDS
Donated funds represent grants utilized for micro lending operations only when all the attached conditions are complied

by the Company.
RESERVES

Accumulated surplus
General resenves represent surpius of receipt over the expenditures as per Statement of Income and Expenditure.

Loan loss reserve

Resarve for [oan loss has been creatad at the rate of 5% of outstanding micro-credit loan portfolio of the Company. This
reserve Is used for the write-off of loans given under this scheme and is replenished by the Company from general

reserve.

Note 2021 2020
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF LAND Rupees Rupees
At beginning of the year 300,203,137 209.478.137
Add: surplus arising on revaluation of land
during the year 221 - 90,725,000
_emary 9002057

This represents surplus resulting from revaluation of land carried oul latest by 14 February 2020 by Tristar International
Consuftant (Private) Limited. The revalued amounts of said properties have been determined on the basis of detailed

inspection of the properties and numerous independent market inguiries from local aclive realtors in the vicinity.

LONG TERM FINANCING
Long term loans
Long term loans

Local currency loans
Foreign currency loans
Transiation loss on foreign currency loans

Less: Unamortized transaction cost

Less: Payable within one year

Mote 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
23.1 10,162,784,549 13,014,743.658
2311 8,708,161,771 9.260,520.576
23.1.2 9,559,715,891 8,435.565437
231.3 130,940,710 1.457,113.253
18,398,818,372 19,153,208,272
(164,483,487) (140,082,134)
18,234,334,885 19,013,126,138
{B,071,550,336) (5,998,382,280)
10,162,784,549 13,014,743,858
Sty
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2311 Local cisrency loans

ASHF FOUNDA TION

Rate of interest  Outstanding

2021 2020
Hr. Mo Landar L
i Fupess Rupees
Locu! gorrency - gecured
1 45 Bank Limited Term Fingnoe Facility 545 454 545 G386 1 MHKIBOR + 1.85%
2 Asban Bark Lmdad Long Term Finance 208,333 333 250 000 000 M KIBOR « 2%
3 MCH Bank Limied Demand Finsncg-l 250,000, 000 81250000 6 M EROR2 35%
4 MICE Bank Limiled Derrand Finance-il S00, 000,000 500 000,000 W KIBRDR 2%,
8 Bank Adfalah Limied Term Firance Facitg- SQ000000 3 MKIBOR + 2%
]
8 Acumon Palostsn Taarn Loan 8,332,333 & M KIBOR +2%
7 Pk -Gl bnrgtonanl Syndhcabed Term 120,000,000 6 MEIBOR « 3%
Comparry Limibed France Facity
L Pak-China Invesiment Term Finance Faciity L ML IMKIBOR + 5%
Company Limiled
9 Paleptan Mcro Finance  Standasd Term Loan 109,000,000 218,000,000 B M KIBOR + 3%
Irrvesiment Comparny
Limatind
w0 Pakatan Moo Financs  Standaid Term Loan 132,000,000 58, 00, 000 &M EIBOR + 3%
Ereesamenl Comgany
Lamaed
" Pabistan Morg Finance  Standand Term Loan 1891, 150,000 2.309.000.000 & M KIBOR + 3%

Irrvarsirmant Company
Limitiod

Pagu 2301 40

18 instakments
wncing an 27
Dec Juz2

5 mtsliments.
ending on X3
A F02T

B sslaliments.
ondngon 27
Aped 2073

16 nslalmants.
starhing from 21
HAugust 2071

7 nstalmards
endeg on 18
Saphernbay

enchng £ T
iy 2021

2 myinlments

enaing on 30
Sep 2021

3 rstaliments

ending on 11
Dee 2021

Innerest

Monthiy
Chrtnrty

S

The loan i socunsd agans! e Rrl pai-pase
charge ©n all presen] and future cument assols
wilh 25% mangn

T boen 5 SeCured aganst the frst pan pas
charge on sl presord and fulure curment aspeds
(emciuding  Fvestmenl  portiohs  and  assets
forming pan of PPAF security] with 25% mangin

Tha loan 5 socured agains ithe Gl pas-passy
chargs ower all present and fubune CunTent Sssets
feociuding  Fvesiment ool and  assets
lorming part of PPAF security] with B mangen of
25%

The loon i secured sgarst the first pan-patsy
chawgs coer 55 prosent Bnd futuns curtent sesets
(ouchocng  Ewesimend  porffolo  Bnd Eosels
forming part of PPAF securty] with tha margin of
2%

This ioar has Boon lully iepakd dunng the yoe

Thin koar: Fas. Do Iully repaid dunng ey
This koir: s Beon lully regad Gunng eyl

Thiz loan & secuned againal the first pan-passu
change aver all present and future cumenl assats
(mchuding  invesimend  portfolio  snd  assets
ﬂmmdmwmnmd

Than loan = socuned againsd the first pan-pass
hypolhecation charge on all present and fulure
curment assets wilh the masgn of 20%.

The ioen n secured againat the frst pac-passu

ypothecaton chavpe on ol presend Bnd fulurg
LT BESats wilh Ine masgen of 20%

The loan & secured against the fest pan-passy
hypolhecation charga on ail prosent and fulure
curtent assets with the masgn of 10%

#
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FASAE FOUNTA oW

Sr, Mo Laader 2021 XM Hate of inierent
12 Pakistan Moo Finance  Standard Term Loan 612,500,000 0000000 &M KIBOR - TR ¥ wannlimaan. Cuadedy  The losn m socured Sgainet e Beal fah passs
Ivestmant Company wndng on 31 hipothecstaon chamgn &4 M pretent and has
—— Doec 22 CuTEnd SLAATE
1 Pakigtan Moo Finance  Stendard Term Loan 7,384, THD 000 8 GBOR 4 3 1% T4 ralsliments Chamterty  The ioan i sodured aganst tha Rt
P pul
Mtyasbmgnt Company santng o 30 Inypolteton chage o4 8l presen sed L
Lienited Jne 2077 tasrend sty
14 Gite Bard Limitsd Term Fance Facisly » ,250 000 B M RO 3% Chuarey  Thes ioen s been Rully repaed dureg the yie,
15 United Bank Libed  Tarm Firseics Facildy 50000000 €M FIBOR+1 5% Somi Arvusly This ioan has been Rully rod during The year
6 Pakstan Poverty Primg Merentes's - JE 006100 Inberent Frow Losn
o P L e Mot applcatie  Thes ioan hos Deen hully repasd danng ey,
17 Matonal Bank of Term Loan 543,500,000 25000000  AMKBOR + T%  § enlsiments Quanardy  Tho loon = secured sgaesl Bl por-pasc
Pakisian wnding on 31 chaige on B presont Bnd Tulee curenl Baels
Judy HiT3 (sther fhan the mrvastmant pordobo snd e
asael formerg par of e PPAF socuty) with
magm
18 Tha Bank of Punmab Teem Finarcn Fociy - 150,000,000  3M KBOR + I'% Cuarlady  This ioan has been lully recaid doring [he yeer
18 Tha Bank of Punjab Teem Finance Fackty 13,3015 $00000000 IMKE0H « 18 §instalments Quartady Tha loan m secwred sganal fnd pan-possu
anding on I8 hypohecabon chargs on present and o
Al 2023 cutmenl asaly includng micro loees Bnd 8l
rolabod necervabien of The company wih & 2%
mangn
20 Pak Oman kvesstmani Term Finance 1.500.000,000 2000000000  3MKIBOR « 2X%  § instabments Chawtedy  The loan & secured sgainat first par-passu
Corpary Limited Cariifcaies enchng on 30 Inypothecaton charge on prosent and fulume
Sephernber outend assets inchuadng mico loens and =l
023 roinlied recenRies of the company wilh & 19%
Thess term fnance oortficates s bndod
on Palustan Siock Exchangs
21 Bank Afalsh Lenied Tarm Firmnce Facity- 200,140,872 20,225 358 100% 5 anstplmgnis Quadordy  The loan » secued agans! 1he il pad-paasu
n ending on 18 chaips over all presand Bnd Riure curment sssets
Onchober 2022 {aaciading mwesimanl portfolia) with (he mangin
ol X%
23" Dank Aalsh Lirited Term Finance Facildy- 197,288,575 3 00% 5 watalirmenis Cuarmsrdy  Tha loan is secosed agansi the frsl pan-passa
™ ke o0 131 change over all present and htung curent Jae
Ociaber 3005 lenchudng eneiinent porioho} with e mangn
of IR
1,771 520578
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KASHF FOLUNDATION

The Company enlered into cross Currency Swap soresment with MCB Bank on Cclobar 20, 2016. Loan is transisted at the
exchange rale of Aa 104 TOASD converting the Hability of LISD 4,485,000 to Ra. 467.500.200 and the interes! rate is
convertad fom USD EM LIBOR phug B8.10% per annum to 2 fixed rala of 14.25%.

The Company entesed inko cioss curmency swap agreemen with MCS Sank on November 03, 2017, Loan is ransiabed at the
exchange rale of Rs 105 SUSO converfing the labiity of USD 3000000 o Rs 316.500,000 and the interes! rate &
converted from USD &M LIBOR plus 5% per annum o a fived rate of 12 40%

The Company entered into cross cumrency swap agresment with MCO Bank on April 24, 2018, Loan is transiated ot the
exchange rale of Rs. 115.85USD converting tha fiabilty of USD 5000.000 (o Rs. 578,250,000 and the intarest rale =
converied from 7.37% per snnum 1o o foced rate of 13.20%

The Company entered Inlo ofoss cufency swap agresment with MCE Bank on May 07. 2013, Loan (s wansiated at the
exchange fate of Rs 11565050 converting the labikty of USO 6,000,000 to Rs. 578,250,000 and the interest raie =
cemvarted from USD 2M LIBOR plus 4 15% per annum to a fixed rate of 12.50%.

The Company snlened into cmes cumency swap agréament with MCBE Bank on May 21, 2018, Loan |s transiated st the
exchangs rale of Ra 11585USD convedting the labilty of USD 5,000,000 to Rs. 578250000 rate s
corveriad from USD &M LIBOR plus 4. 75% per annum 1o a feed rale of 13.30%

ard interest
The Company enlared ko Cross Cumency Sivap agreement with MCB Bank on August 24, 2018. Loan is ransiated af \ne
sxchange rate of Fu m:s.usummnnmmmyumuammnm 359,022 900 and the interest rale s
convenad inom USD 3M LIBOR plus 4.15% per annum 10 a fived rale of 14.10%.

The Company enferad Inlo cross cumency swap agreemant wih MCB Bank on Octobar 25, 2018, Loan s transialed o the
sxchangs rape ol Re 132.3USD converfing the: habiity of USD 1.980,000 fo Rs. 201 954000 and the interest rote o
converted from USD 30 LIBOR plus 4. 15% per annum 10 @ variable rate of 3M KIBOR plus 1 75%:

The Company entered Inlo cross curmency swap agreamant with MCE Bank on October 25, 2018, Loan ik transiated a1 the
wichange rale of Rs. 1323USD converting the labiity of USD 3.860,000 fo Rs. 523908000 and the interest rale o
convarted from USD 6 LIEOR plus 4 50% per piinum 1o 8 variable rafe of 6M KIBOR plus 4%

The Company enfered inle Cross cunrency Swip agreement wih MCE Bank on January 21, 2019, Loan is ransisted ol the
exchange rafe of Rs 13882450 converting the liabitity of USD 4,950,000 to Rs 87 156,000 and the inlérest rale &
converied fnom 6,20% pér annun 10 & varisble rate of 6M KIBOR plas 2 9%,

The Company entered Inlo oross cumancy swap agreemaent with MCE Bank on Februany 14, 2019, Loan i fransiated ot iha
exchange raje of Rs 138 B50USD converting the Habiity of USD 7,000,000 to Rs. 972,050,000 and the intarest rate s
convartad from 8 15% per anhum 1o a vanabie rale of 3 KIBOR plus 3 55%

The Gompany enlered inl0 cross cumency swap agreement with Faysal Bank on June 26, 2019. Loan iy translated ot the
#xchange rate of As 1682 TOAUSD converting the liabity of USD 3.000,000 to Rs, 488.100.000 and tha intarest rale is
converied from 6 20% per annum 16 a vadable rate of GM KIBOR plus 4.10%

The Company enlered infg cross cumency swap agreemant with Standard Chanered Bank on November 1, 2010. Loan i
irarminiad ad the exchange rale of Rs 155.62/USD converting the Rabiity of USD 10 000.000 to Rs. 1.556.200.000 snd the
intedesd robe m convaerted from & Month Libor plus 4% 1o & variable rate of GM KIBOR phus 2. 50%

The Company entered inlo Cross cumency swap sgreement with Stendarg Chorterad Bank on Fobruary 21, 2020, Loan s
Iranslaled a1 e sxchange rate of Rs. 154 2HUSD converting the liabiity of USD 1,980,000 lo As. 305355600 and the
interesd rate s convened fram 3 Month Libor plus 4.1% to 8 variabie rale of JM KIBOR plus. 2.04%

The Company eniensd inls cross clmency swap agheament with Habib Bank Lid for first Tranche of Loan on February 12,
2020, Loan is tracslated &l (he exchenge rate of Rs 154.35USD converting the labilty of USD 2 1
1mmmmmu-mu-mummumwwuﬁnnmmﬂmmm-m

on April 08, 2020. Loan is ransiated af the exchange rate of Rs. 107 25/U5D converting the liabilty of USD 8,666,596 66 1o
Re 1,714 988 207 3% and the intbras! tale is convertad from 6 Monih Libor plus 4.25% to A variadls rate of 8M KIBOR pius
1.65%

The Company énlered Inio cross cumency Swap sgreeinent with Habd Bank Lid on July 28, 2020. Loan is ranstaled ot the
exchange rate of Rs mmmsnmmmuusuvmmmh1m E20,000 and the interest rale s
conventad from 8 Month Libos plus 4 15% 10 8 variable rale of 6M KIBOR plus 2.22%.

The Comparry enteded inlo cross cumency swap agreement with Standard Chaneced Bank on December 09, 2020, Loan &
Iransiaiad al the exchangea rale of RS, 160.55USD converting the Uabiity of LSD 2,487,560 50 1o Rs. 399.377.847.91 and the
inerest rate B convared from 6 Month Liber plug 4.5% to & variable role of M KIBOR plus 2.7%.

The Company eniensd Inlo cross cumendy Swap agreemen! with Standand Chartered Bank on Decamber 06, 2020. Loan s
iransialed al the sxchange raie of Rs 160 S5/USD corverting the kability of USD 4.950000 fo Rs. 794,722,500 and the
inerest rate i converied from O Maonih Libor plus 4.5% 10 & varable rate of GM KIBOR plus 2.6%.

The Company entered iNl0 CfOSS CUMMENcy Swap agreemen| with Habib Bank Lig on February 18, 2021, Loan is trensialed a1
ine exchange rate of Rs. 158.00USD comverting tha Bability of USD 5000.000 to Re. 704,250,000 and the intorest rate /s
converted from & Month Libor plus 4.25% 10 8 variabhe rate of 6M KIBOR plus 3.64%

The Company antared 1o C1068 CUMTENcy Swep agreement with Habio Bank Lid on June 25, 2021, Loan is Wansiated al iha
exchange rale of Rs. 157.65/US0 comnverting the liablity of USD 7,489,965 o Rs. 1,152.380,482 29 and the interes! rale is
convertod from & Month Libor 10 & fived rate of 7.50%

Tranalation loas on forelgn currency loans

Fweunmnmmnmhmwmumﬁuumnmmmrunﬂqumﬁ}
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KASHF FOUNDATION

LEASE LIABILITIES

The effective inferest rate used as the discounting factor (Le. incremental borrowing rate) is 8.97%. The amount of fiture
payments and the period during which thay will become due are:

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupess
Penod ending 30 June {Restated)
2021 - 8,265,385
2022 B4 458 668 §T.413,714
2023 82,774,903 95,013,088
2024 43,823,482 63,133,988
2025 2,250,273 7.330,708
2026 574,782 -
223,885,108 235,180,884
Less: Future financa charges (26,663,224) (34.908.774)
197,321,684 200,252,110
Less: Current matunty of long term lease (68,511.543) (84.697.137)
u_a‘gwg'l 135,554 872
Set out below are the carnying amounts of lease liabiliies and the movement during the year
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
(Restated)
Balances as at July 1 200,252,110 & 265,385
Effect of Inltia} recognition dus 1o adoption of IFRS 16 . 226,337,326
Additons during the year 56,674,039 .
Markup on lease llabiities as 18,158,457 17.843.719
275,984 606 252 450,429
Less. Leasa rentals paid (78,662,722) (52,198.319)
Balance as at June 30 197,321,884 200,252,110
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
KIVA Loan - forelgn currency loan
Opening 133,555,461 127,050,252
Disbursed during the year 10,080,000 175,303,000
Less Repaid on recovery lrom individus! borrowers (91,515,075) (169,482 718)
Exchange gan/loss 8.704,818) 654,927
5.1 4:,41&6‘_?_ 133,555.461

This represents interes! free loan obisined from KIVA Micro funds, a California based nen-prefil, public benefil corporation
KIVA operates a web based busingss that provides microfinance loans lo individuals and groups of developing countries
through local lenders of those countries, The Company is regisiered under KIVA and is solely responsible for collection of

loans from borrowers and repayment (o Kwhm
a..'

Page 28 of 40



RALMF EOUNOA TION
e
e T F— o = o -— = Rl — — —
T e e e T i B— o P em— T s = - - B — - -
- ] e = - e
e — s ] =iy s BT | — — — — —— — — = ( — r— r— —— I~ ——
- re= A - - + i L - —— I e A
o e S l=_ .. [ oy - -
[e—

: — s
B e R s Wae —E — e — — R
B - - - T i —— -
P S — - - - LE L -
———— T T e — _ﬁ'ﬁ"m'_m TR TR TR T (e e e
Fm
S - —
e .
Y w— S | - FoN. | 3 -
g
e Il-_
e - ——
———— e TN T I e ‘ o e e i

L

[ T

165



66|

27

28

281

29

30

ACCRUED MARK-UP

Markup on
= long e loans
- shorl term borrowings

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued expenses
Provigen! fund payable
Insurance premium payable
Celerred Murabaha income
Claims payable

Cash Management System (CMS) charges payable

Staff Bonus payable
Cther habilities

Provident fund:

KASHF FOUNDATION

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
412,572,334 608,991,288
4,626,382 1,726,858
417 198,716 611,718,246
48,930,104 £8 926 670
281 - -
76,180,323 58,641 591
111,515,286 64,480,555
16,515,088 10,610,352
25,451,028 21,089,165
86,626,083 .
73,545,792 69,942 067
439.763.703 271.690.401

The Company operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent and efigible employees. The following
information is based on the un-audiled financial slatements of the provident fund as at 30 June 2021

Size of the fund - tolal assels
Cost of invesiments made

Paercentage of investments - (% of total assets)

Fair value of invesiments

The break-up of investments is as follows:

Term Deposit Receipts
Mutual Funds
Term finance cerificate BAFL

(Un-audited)

2021 2020
Rupeas Rupees
982,306,881 835,491 409
T08,353,57T4
T2.21% A

708,353,574 503,330,432

2021 2020
Rupees % Rupees %
630,000,000 BB.B1% £80,000.000 97.79%
68,523,574 9.66% 13,330,432 221%
10,830,000 2.00% 5 =
708,353,574 100% mmﬁ 100%

The invastmeants oul of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies

Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There wera na significant contingencies and commitments as at 30 June 2021 (2020 Nil)

MARK-UP AND OTHER CHARGES ON MICRO-CREDIT LOAN

PORTFOLIO

Mark-up charges on:

- Kashi Karcbar Karza

- Kashi Zariye Karza

- Kashl School Sarmaya

- Kashi Easy Loan

= Kashl Muwalshi Karza

- Kasnhf Sahulat Karza

- Kashl Bahali Karza
Reversal of modification loss
Loan documentation fees
Commission on insurance
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2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
3,825.654,253 4,358,113,832
9,947 545,074
8,639,268 53,040,591
267,991,583 a73 906,934
111,575.370 105,225 427
969,134 T.447 432
189,912,245 -
150,509,275 .
22 75480
84,659,441 82,680,133
4,839,852,835 4.979,024,703

813
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KASHF FOUNDATION

MNote 2021 2020
GRANT INCOME Rupees Rupees
Grant ralated to projects 26 63,919,796 T7.660.055
Amortization of grant related 1o assets 3,839,274 1,469,030
Service level agresment $0.738 =
67,849,808 789,129,085
RETURN ON INVESTMENTS AND BANK DEPOSITS
Return on term deposit receipls 166,201,988 210,197,042
Return on bank deposits
Local 478,060,606 415,900,931
Forelgn 329,574 10.587
33,592,089 GF6108560
PROGRAMME COST
Satanes, wages and benefits 1.373,984,015 1,204,908,940
Travel and conveyance 146,970,858 138,744 176
Insurance 167,166,367 160,388,577
Office rent 4,893,019 15,793,139
Provision for loan loss 487,532,705 388318299
Seminar, workshop, research and staff raining expenses 3,871,718 $1.002,043
Entertainment 33,068,033 28,914,160
Printing and stationary 10,623,793 19,183,555
Comrmunication 23,964,202 21,701,073
Legal and professional chargas 70,892,285 20917178
Depreciation - owned assets 6.2 45,461,275 51,817,860
Depreciation - right of use assets 6.2 62,140,916 45,917 438
Utiliies 17,740,006 13,984,974
Repair and mainlanance 7.7562,565 6,241,737
Office supplies 9,679,195 15,528,426
Security 4,314,895 3,512,544
27809554 __ 2171872117
GRANT EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and banefits 42,389,381 21,484,196
Travel and conveyance 2,783,836 3,204,703
Insurance 117,880 =
Office rent 2,247,300 1,070,563
Seminar, warkshop, research and slaff raining expensas 4,883,240 8,081,262
Printing and stationery 1,327,565 781,521
Commumnication 1,046,609 223,708
Depreciation 6.2 3,770,809 1,469,030
Amortization 68,465
Utifities 1,834,118 128,852
Repair and maintenance 1,107,522 162,615
Office supplies 2,613,129 283,617
Media campaign 2,970,600 16,842 006
Corona relief fund 169,750 18,603,688
Miscallaneous _ 449,564 5,813,233
67,849,808 79,128,085
FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term loans 1,787,049,754 2,406 845 657
Mark-up on finances under mark-up arrangements 4,874,182 120.028
Markup on lgass liabilitias 244 23,205,623 20,066,061
Bank charges . 112,711,434 124,534,392
Amontization of transaction costs of loans and borrowings 93,662 564 86.228.011
Loss on leased vehicles 924,408 2773.224
2022447965 2.640.567.373
My
Page 31 of 40 |67



68|

36

6.1

16.2

ar

8

KASHF FOUNDATION

Note 2021 2020

MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and benafils 282,275,927 268,562,758
Travel and conveyance 12,586,732 15,600,209
Insurance 871,710 979,441
Seminar, workshop, research and slafl training expenses 2,705,456 8,256,890
Entertainment 6,162,081 6812324
Printing and stationery 658,060 731,389
Communication £7T3 272 7,801,908
Legal and professional charges 364 6,465,230 27,980,636
Dspraciation 6.2 46,788,548 43 087,121
LHilitias 16,668,871 13,288,757
Repar and maintenance 15,021,040 2,260 000
Office supplies 2,794,853 2,224 885
Security 613,645 654,003
Amartization 71 3,625,587 1,434,187
Auditor's remuneration 36.2 2,060,000 1,056,000
Advertisement 27,144 4T1 10,479 968
Miscellanaous 1,452 39.055

433,667,542 410,008 612

Shariah Advisor Remuneration

Kashf foundation has appointed Al Hamd Shanah Advisory Services (Pnivate) Limited as its Shariah advisor for the review of

tha mechanism of Istamic portiolio with effect from 7 June 2021 with the remunération of Rs 40,000/ par month

Note 2021 2020
Auditors® remunaeration Rupees Rupees
Statutory auddt fee 1,995,000 880,000
Ot of pocket expansas 65,000 176,000
——000,000 1,096,000
OTHER EXPENSES
Donatons 242,926 19,147
Modification loss on financial asseals . 375447 618
Foreign exchange loss 28,183,114 -
——i426,040 375,486,765
OTHER INCOME
Income from financial asseis
Bad debl recovernad B80T 828 3,115,265
Liabilibhes written back 40,317,980 658077
Foreign exchange gain - net - 3,389,329
Fair value gain on Mutual Funds 100,258 48 883
Fair value gain on the invesiment property 5,646,850 g
Repayment of loan from associate 18,000,000 -
Dividend income 3,575,882 1,664,984
Ingome from assets other than financial assets:
Income from rent 13,913,898 13,035,330
Gain on sale of property and equipment 6,038,091 208,081
Miscellaneous income 9,603,177 8361813
98,013,964 31519742
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Officer “Executives
2021 2020 2021 2020
Managerial remuneration 23,885,952 23835962 248,005,020 190,364 258
Allowances and othars 8,266,645 6,300,457 54,227 606 43 343 853
32,152,497 30,185.409 302,232,526 2:&,?03.12'1
HNumbar 1 1 101 &1
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391 Total number of directors of the Company as ot June 30, 2021 were 10 (2020: 9) None of the direclor is paid any

40

42

az1

42.2

42.3

424

remuneralion

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has employed foliowing number of persons including permanent and contractual staff

2021 2020
Numbers Mumbears
As al June 30 3,118 321
Average number of employees 3,163 3,140
Note 2021 _ 2020
RATIOS Percentage Parcentage
Portfolio al nsk 42.1 4. 39% 28.72%
Adjusted Return on Assels 42.2 3.10% 0.99%
Adusted Return on Equity 42.3 15.88% 5 18%
Operstional self-sufficiency 42.4 115.00% 104 . 00%
Financial self-sufficiency 42.5 104.66% o7 42%
Surplus as a percentage of total receipts 42.8 13.26% 3.82%
Management and admin:sirative éxpenses
as percemage of lotal recaipts 42.7 T.48% T.02%
2021 2020
Numbers Nurnbers
Agtive pan
- g5 a1 30 June 14.8&15.3 554,805 435720
Active clients.
-a% 8 30 Juna 850,090 450130
- gisbursements during (he year 42.8 547 617 4&4&3
Portfolla at risk

The value of all oulstanding loans that have one or more instaliments of principal overdue for more than 1 day. This item
includes the entire unpaid principal balance, including both overdue and fulure instaliments. bul not accrued interest,

Adjusted Return on Assets

Adpsted return on Assets ("ROAT) is calculated using adjusted earnings in the numerator for the last twelve months and
using average otal assels in the denominator

Adjusted Return on Equity

This calculates the rate of retum of the Company on the average equity for the period. Adjusted return on equity ("ROE") 5
calculated using adjusted eamings in the numerator for the fast twelve months and using average equity in the denominator

Operational self-sufficiency
Measures how well the Company covers its costs through operating revenues. It s caloulated us:ng operating income as
numeratod and denominator includes operating expénse, financial expense and loan-loss provision expense are also included
in this calculation, as they are normal (and significant) cost of oparating

Lol
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HASHF FOUNDATION

Financial self-sufficlancy

This rafic measures how well the Company covers s costs. taking inio account a certain adjusimants o operating expenses. The purpase of
these sdusiments is 1o model how well the Company could cover ifs costs if its operations thal are unsubsized and || was funding s
expangon with commercial-cos! liabittes. It is calculsted in the ssme manner as operstional sell-sufficiency except the adusimend 1o tho
cparaling axpenses o operabons of tha entity that ane unsubsicized and it was funding s expansion with commencial cost abdites along
walhn iha impact of infation

Surplus as a percentage of total rocelpts
TmﬂﬁﬂmmhmﬁmwfﬂiMdhm.mhmmMMMHmh
axplnies over 1l receipls m-nmmmmmmumwmmwmmuw
Management and sdminisirative expensos as & percontago of wtal receipts

This ratio représents the proporion the management and Boimin Expenses against gross incoma of the Company. This s calculated using tha
managemant and admin expenses for the yeer as nurmerator and denominator inchudes gross incoma for this year,

Cisbursemonts during the year
The Company has disbursed micro-credit loan amounting 1o Rs. 26,88 billkon (2020 Re. 21.3 billion) during tha year.
RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Trhe Bosed of Direclors of the Company has owerall responsibiity for the establishment and oversight of the Company's sk management
framework. The Company has expoaure i lollowing risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credd nisk
- Liguicity ngh
Markel rish,

Risk management framework

mmwﬂmmmwwmwmmmmumw:mmw The
exeidive management leam is respontible for developing and monitoring e Company's risk managermant policies: The team regulary meets
and any changes ond compliance issuss are reporied 1o ihe Board of Directors through the audit commilias

Crodit risk

Cradit nak i3 tha nsk thal one party to a fingncial instroment wil fall %0 dscharge an obligation and cause iha olher pary 1o ncur A financial
logs, without taking into acoount the fair valus of any collsteral Concentration of credil risk arises when a number of counter parties are
wnmmmsMMManﬂwmmMMmﬂmmwu
wmiderly affected by changes in ecpnomics, political or other condiions Concentrations of credit righ indicale the relative sensitvity of the
mwumuwmmammw

Exposure to crodit risk

Tmmmﬂfummmwmtmmﬂxmmw The maximum exposure o credd risk al the feporting date
WaE B8 foliows:

Nots 2021 2020
Numbars Numibers
Actrued Senice charges 18 190,860,347 GAT 442 247
Long term invastments 4122 180,515,000 -
Long term loans 10 217,730 826,924
Micto-credit laan porticlio 11814 15,218,962,572 12,264,240,180
Kashf Murabaha portfolio 15 £19,440,958 405,701,513
Advances, depogits and otner redevable 4323 231,647,953 27417 329
Short tem investmants 4322 1.213,032,111 2,301,094,883
Bank colances 4322 5,917,588, 116 6,084,838 452
Financ:al assels used for hedging 43232 154,367,951 1,340,872.087
. —m &‘mﬁlﬂh‘ mm

Credit quality of investments and bank balances

mmwmﬂmwmm-vmmmmwmmm feference to exdemal croedil ralings: (if
availatie) o to histanical information about courderparty getaui rate: ' i &

Sy~
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Rating
Namig of Bank __Agency Shart term Long term 0 020
Rupeoes Rupees

MCB Bark Lid PACRA Al AAS 172578, 385 1,284 617,376
Hakeb Bank Lid Wis Al AAR 29,560,428 184 940 881
Faysal Bank L PACRA Alw Ak, 15,553,698 76 (b8 43T
Aled Bank Lid PACRA Alw AAS 8,722,119 13678408
The Bank of Punjaly PACRA Alw Al 15,885,806 423 365,757
Banik Al-Habit Ltd PACRA Al Ans 18,983,369 4 152,567
Silk Bank Lid vis A2 A 5,056,376,128 6,188 835,270
Soner Bank Lid PACRA Al AA- 1.037,163,078 103,388,103
45 Bank Lid PACRA Al A 350,051,634 600,585,012
Standard Chadtered Bank Lig PACRA Al Bas 21,111,803 43 676,270
Agkari Bank Lid PACRA Ale e 1,693,980 111 056,422
Apna MNicrofinance Bank Lid PACRA Ad BBE+ T.154 825 2,208 843
Meezan Ban Lid VIS Al LY 7652 7.852
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Lid PACRA At A 115,041,501 23,248 078
NRSP Mcrofnance Bank Lid PACRA %) A 66,166,782 &0 314 510
Sindh Bank Lid VIS Al A 45,485,181 20,727 a4
United Bank Lid vis Als A 23,733,628 38,341 004
Khushall Mecrofinance Bank Lid Vis Al A 13,613,738 10,003,910
Bank Adlakah PACRA Al A 181,424, 761 214,372, THY
Dubai Iskamic Bank VIS Als BA . 50,000,000
Hational Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al BAA 188,343 42 408
Banklslkami Paksian L PACRA Al A 1299 12,348
State Bank, of Pakistan . . . 3116 2103116
Faysal Income & Growth Fung PACRA Al 14,170,044 13,390,502
KEP Mutua! Furds . . . 10,312 371
NBP Fimancisl Seclor Income Fund  PACRA . Asif) 62,722,458 -

U Micro Finanoe Bank - Al A 25,793,296 -
Telenor microfinance Bank Lid vis Al A 8,038,197 13,404 552
Central Deposstory Comparny - - - &) .

SRR A RN

4323 Other financial assets

Advances, deposis, prepayments and other receivables are mostly dus fom employess & financial insbiutions. Based on past axpenence the
maragement believes that no impaimnent alowance is necesaary in respect of nese financial assets. There are rasonable grounds 15 bebave
{hat thess amaunis will be recovernsd wath in @ penod of six monls

Concootration risk

cwdmndmmummmammmemmmmmw
mnumismlmmmhwwmuﬂw.Thutmvf;wﬂuhdﬁm-:uuum
m&umummmmunmmmmmmmmwmmwwﬂ

cond risk
2021 2020
Rupess Rupees
Barks 7,388,520,676 6,712 102,560
Mutual hund 76,892,502 23702872
Dicya 217,730 626,924
I’ 7,465,730,908 9.736.402.358

6324 Loans and advances

wilh foraard looking factors mmmmmmmﬂwm.wxW{m}mmm
Dafault (LGD) by product type Thes i& similas to the apgrosch used for (e purposes of measunng ECL under IFRS @

Expeciad Credit Loss Measurement

wmmhﬁmﬂﬁlmnﬂwmmwwmmw.umaw
m‘m&mlwwnwm.MMWdhmﬂuMWMthmhmm
has occurmed for an exposun by Comganng.

“Tre remaining Balime PD a3 al B feporing date; )
.Thamuhﬂnumfumm“mmwumﬂhmﬁwmdmmlmmmmm

changés in prepaymisnt sxpectations).
mwmmamummmmmm-mmmmmmm
~Quantitative tas! basod on movemant in days past due, and

-Forbearance | restructuring slatus

Hubﬂammmw“bu-dmmmmmnmmmmﬂwmwm Dufferent Bcanomes
seananes will lad 1o 8 gifferent PO Fonward-looking information comprises of expected inflation projections.

Dafinition of detaull
Crteal o the delermination of ECL s the delinion of oofaull mmdwummmwmﬁmemm

mmdmwmnm-mumdm1zmnmm£a,nmnwaummﬂwwa}.
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KASHF FOUNDATION
which affects both the measunement of ECLs and the identhication of 8 significant inCraase in Cradit fisk

The Company consicers e following 88 consttuting an event of default

-The contract is past due mare than 90 days, o
-The credit ooligations refected in the contract (5 unlikely i be pard 1o the Company such as decaased Domowers

Write-off

Whan periodic collactive historical recovery analysis indicatos that the Company does not expect significant additonsl recoveras afier cartain
manths in defaul ("MID™), it s the policy of the Company & write-off loans on a collectve basis.

Amounts of financial aasets that wers wiitten off during (he reporting penod amounted to Rs. S00.6 million (2020: Re. 9.9 millon)

Measuremant ol ECL
The key inouts into the measurement of ECL are the lerm structure of the following variables

-Prabability of default (PD).
-Loss given default (LGD);
-Exposune 8t defaull (EAD).

These parameteds are generaglly derived from internally devaloped siaistical models and other hestoncal dati
Liguidity risk

LMlyﬂ:huMnnmuuWmMMMnMMMMWhMMMMM
because of the possibility that the Company could be required 1o pay s labiities eadier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to mest
commitments associated with financial haoikies as they fall due. The foflowing are the remaining contraciual malurities of financial liabilities
inzluding interes! payments

2021
Carrying Contractual Up to one year More than
amount Cash flows of less Qng year
Rupees
Trade and other payables 216,171,305 216171305 216.171.30% -
Long term lcans and borrowings 18.398,818,272 18,308 818372 B 234 586,005 10,164,122.277
Short tenm Domowing 43,415,547 43415547 43,415 847 -
Leasze fiabilites 197,321,884 223,885,108 B4 458 668 138,426,440
1 727,108 18 B5TE 741615 10,303 717
Carrying Contract.al Up to one year Mare than
amount Cashflows or less N o
Rupees
Trade and other payables 186,120,680 186,120,680 186,120,680 -
Long berm igans and Dooowings 19.153,208.272 19,153.208.2T2 5,187 668428 13,085 539 B4a
Short term bomowing 133,555,461 133,555,481 133,555,461 .
Lease Latilitios 200,252,110 235,150,884 _B.269.385 226,891,498

e iseE e T, Sioenaess __TRIRAIIG
Market rigk

Market fisk (s the rek that the value or cash fowa of the financial instrument may fluctuste as a result of changes in marketl interest rates or na
market prices due 1o a change in credil rabing of the issusr of the instrument, change in market sentiments, specutative activities, supply and
mmufmﬁmmllqmdmnmmamTmmmmrinwnmmndardmdmwr

Currancy risk
o.rmmismmmmhmdammm“umummmmmm.mem
arises mainly where receivabies and payables exist as a result of transactions with foreign undedakings The Company is exposed 10 cumency
mwm:mmmnumwmmmmmnmmwmmmm
of tha Company mmmmwc«mumm.mmmmmmmnmmuw
are US dollars

43.4.1 {a) Exposure to currency risk

Immwnmmlmmemmuwwmwldhﬂwwmium

2021 2020

uspD UsD
Liabilithes
Borrawings 440,129 109,162
Mark-up accrued on bomowings 5,593 §.727
Met balance sheat exposurne M_EJE_ 118,889

43.4.1 (b) Exchange ratos applied during the year

The following significant exchange rates have been sppbed dunng the year:
_'“'.'_"H!__.m% Reporting date rate
2021 2021 2020

LSS0 to PKR 162.92 166.15 157.54 168.30

et 3
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43.4.1 (d)

43.4.2

4342

KASHF FOUNDATION

Sensitivity analysis:

At reporting date, If the PKR had strengthaned by 10% basis points against the foreign cumencies with all cther vaniables held constant, before
tax profl for the year would heve been lower by the amount shown below, mainly as 8 resull of net foreign exchange gain on Ianslation of
foreign debtors, forgign currency bank account and trade and other payablas.

2021 2020
Effect oo profit or logs Rupoes Rupees
US Doflar ?,ﬂl‘zﬂ. 1,875, 341

Interest rate riak
Interest rate risk ks the risk thal the tair value of fulure ¢ash ffiows of a Bnancisl ingtrumant will fuctuate because of changas in markel mierest

Effective rate Carrying amount
2021 2020 021 2020
Y kS Rupees Rupeea

Financial sssets.

Short term irvestrment 2.26% 1o 96 % % 1o 16% 1,136,139,609 2,277.392.021

Long tanm investrent 9.03% . 180,515,000 -

Loan porifolio 34% to 37.06% 35% 10 39.23% 15,218 12,264, 240,160

1 17,184 14 541|632 201

Financial katelities
Borrowings:

Triodes Hedged 14.25% 14.26% . 93,518,040

Symbiotice-Hedged 12.40% 12.40% - 316,500,000

FMO-Hedged 13.30% 13.30% 144,562,500 209,125,000

Proparco-Hedged 13.20% 13.20% 247,821,429 413,025,714

BiB-Hodged 12.50% 12.50% . 257,000,000

Whcrovest 3. Hedgad 14.10% 14.10% . 184,010,000

Bank Adfalah Lid 3.00% 0.00% 100,140,873 .

Bank Alfalah Lid 3.00% 0000% 187,288,575

coc 11.765% 0.00% 1,182,374,896 -

—isrziesyy _ TESTRTEC
Elzating rate Instrumaents
Effective rate Carrying smount
2021 2020 021
% % Rupees Rupees

Financial liabilibes are;

Bormowings 9.22% to 11.74% 10.02% 10 16.49% 18,398, 818372 19,153,200, 186

18,398,818,372 19,153,209, 180

3 y 1 s 18 (S LTRITTIArTE
A change of 100 points in interasl rales &t

wﬁummmmr:mmw“mmmwmma

shown below. nﬁs-msmmaﬂmm.hpmmmmm,mnm Trea analyses s performed
on the same basia for 2021

Profit or loss 100 bps
Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupees
As ol Jung 30, 2031
Cash flow senaityity-Variebie ratn inancil labiives iS008 (180,968,160)
As at June 30, 2020
Cash flow sensitvity-Vanable rate financial liabiites 191,632,092 {191,532 092}

Tree sensitivity analysis peepared is nol necessarty indicalive of the effects on Suiplus for the year and assets / lnbiltes of the Company.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
meudmimmmmustmwmewmm Fair walus s

desermined on the basis of obieciive evidenca at sach reponing date
Othar prico risk
{ommmmmmmmumﬁmpmwmmmwmoWrmmmem

nmmmmmmmmummﬂmmm.m.mmmmwmmmd

the chargo in equaty index mwcmﬁmuhw%qr
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FRR VALUL WEASURERENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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KASHF FOUNDATION

45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties and associaled undertakings comprise associated company, company in which directors are interested.
staff retirement fund, directors and executives. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties. Amounts due from and to relaled parties are shown under respective noles. Amounts due from
directors and key management personnel (if any) are shown under receivables and remuneration of directors and key
managemeni personnel as disclosed in note 39. Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows.

Relationship with the Compan Nature of transaction 2021 2020
Rupees * Rupees
Provident fund Contribution 76,877,130 72.996.080
Kashf Holdings (Private) Limited Repayment of loan 18,000,000 -
instaliment

46 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on .* #CT 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company
Gy

Chief Executive %r fhlrl' %m; ;éu Director g

o
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